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PART |

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiadficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fordvknoking statements within the meaning of the Pav&ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forwardiooking statements involve known and unknown riskagcertainties, and other factors that may causeastual result
performance, or achievements to be materially diffe from any future results, performance, or aghigents expressed or implied by <
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amotgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our mainnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation, our ability to maiiafavorable supplier arrangements and relatiorsstopr ability to quickly increase capacity
response to an increase in demand, our abilitcéess the market, our ability to maintain or lowesduction costs, our ability to continue
finance research and development as well as opesaéind expansion of production, the increasedast®f larger market players, specific
Becton, Dickinson and Company (“BD”), in providinigvices to the safety market, and other factomreeted intem 1A. Risk Factors.
Given these uncertainties, undue reliance shoultb@@laced on forward-looking statements.

Item 1. Business.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General Development of Business

On May 9, 1994, our company was incorporated inafeto design, develop, manufacture, and marketvative patented safe
medical products for the healthcare industry.

Our goal is to become a leading provider of safietgical products.

Advantages of our VanishPoifft safety products include protection from needlestiglries, prevention of cross contamina
through reuse, and reduction of disposal and adksociated costs. Federal regulation now reqtiresise of safe needle devices. We
developed and are developing new safety medicalyats, some of which do not utilize our patentdthtion technology.

Our VanishPoin® safety products (consisting of ltherculin, insulin, and allergy antigen VanishR& syringes; 0.5mL, 2m|
3mL, 5mL, and 10mL VanishPoifft syringes; the VBARisint® blood collection tube holder; autodisalyerge; and the VanishPoifit IV
safety catheter) utilize a unique friction ring rhanism patented by Thomas J. Shaw, our Foundesjderg, and Chief Executive Office
VanishPoint® safety needle products are designed specificalpregent needlestick injuries and to prevent retdee friction ring mechanis
permits the automated retraction of the needle th& barrel of the syringe, directly from the patjeafter delivery of the medication
completed. The VanishPoifitblood collection tube holder utilizes the same na@i$m to retract the needle after blood has beawrdfromn
the patient. Closure of an attached end cap oblbed collection tube holder causes the needletiact directly from the patient into !
closed blood collection tube holder. The IV safetyheter also operates with a friction ring me&ranwhereby the needle is retracted
insertion of the catheter into the patient. Weodlave a Patient Safe syringe which is uniquely designed to reduce tkk& df bloodstreal
infections resulting from catheter hub contaminatio

Our products have been and continue to be distiiboationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been blocked fr
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestingaged in by Becton, Dickinson and Company {YBihich dominates our market. \
initiated a lawsuit in 2007 against BD. The su#@safor patent infringement, antitrust practices] &alse advertising. The court severed
patent claims from the other claims pending regmhubf the patent dispute. In May 2010, the Caletermined that BI¥ Integra produc
infringed our patents, but the Couwrthjunction was stayed pending appeal, so theymtsdremain in the market at this time. Howeveb,
voluntarily removed its 1mL syringes from the mark&he portion of the suit regarding antitrust anider claims was scheduled to be trie
February 2012; however, in January 2012 the paatiesed to a continuance. Trial is currently apdited to be scheduled in fall 2012.

1




Table of Contents

During the last two quarters of 2011, we purchdeed new molding machines which provide us with tapability to manufacture
piece parts for our VanishPoifit syringes at ounipia Little EIm. We expect to reduce our unit tofmanufacture.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the mahketgh our sales efforts, our innovative techgglantroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We continue tu$oon methods of upgrading our manufacturing déifyaland efficiency in order to redu
costs.

Effective July 12, 2010, we entered into a settlemagreement with Abbott Laboratories (“Abbott”)daHospira, Inc. (“Hospira”).In
connection with this settlement agreement, we gdhtospira an exclusive oryear option to negotiate a licensing agreementéotain use
of our Patient Saf€ syringe. This option expired unexercised in JWEP. We have received the total $8 million optyment. As part
the settlement, in the third quarter of 2010, Haspiaid us $6 million and forgave a marketing fé8X4 million. The settlement was redu
by an outstanding invoice due to us for $144 thodsa

On September 12, 2011, we commenced an offer tohpse all outstanding Class B Convertible Prefe@eutk (the Preferre:
Stock”) for cash and Common Stock (the “2011 Exgea®ffer”). As of November 4, 2011, the expiration date of26@1 Exchange Offe
Preferred Stockholders had tendered a total of6]1984 shares of Preferred Stock. A total of $1,308 and 1,246,964 shares of Comi
Stock were issued as consideration to participaRiregerred Stockholders pursuant to the 2011 Exg@ffer. In accordance with the term
the 2011 Exchange Offer, participating Preferregcitolders agreed to waive all unpaid dividendsiirears associated with their tendt
Preferred Stock, which resulted in a waiver of @ltof $3,539,714 in unpaid dividends in arreaBuring the quarter ended Decembet
2011, we engaged in private sales with three ReleBtockholders which tendered a total of 30,5Mres of Preferred Stock. A total
$49,000 and 30,500 shares of Common Stock weredsas consideration to the three Preferred Stodkhal In accordance with the term
the private sales, the three Preferred Stockhollgrsed to waive all unpaid dividends in arreaspeisited with their tendered Preferred St
which resulted in a waiver of a total of $97,07%ipaid dividends in arrears.

Financial Information

Please see the financial statement#tém 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Datdor information about our revenu
profits and losses for the last three years, atad &3sets for the last two years.

Principal Products

Our products with Notice of Substantial Equivaletzé¢he U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDAgihd which are currently sc
include the 1mL tuberculin; insulin; allergy antig&/anishPoint® syringes; 2mL, 3mL, 5mL, and 10mLniPoint® syringes; th
VanishPoint® blood collection tube holder; the \&rRoint® |V safety catheter; small diameter tubapaer; the Patient Safe syringe; an
the Patient Safé  Luer Cap. We are also sellingdasable syringes in the international marketddition to our other products.

In the August 2007 issue bfealth Devices , ECRI listed the VanishPoiftsyringe as one of two syringes with the highesisitobe
rating.

Syringe sales comprised 98.9%; 97.3%; and 97.2%wva&nues in 2009, 2010, and 2011.

2




Table of Contents

Principal Markets

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanades primarily in the U.S. (with 17.0% of revesua 2011 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not lidite, acute care hospitals, alternate care falitiloctorsbffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetetansinistration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons.

The need to change to safety devices is due taishethat is carried with each needlestick injurhigh includes the potent
transmission of over 20 bloodborne pathogens, dictythe human immunodeficiency virus (“HIWthich causes AIDS), hepatitis B, ¢
hepatitis C. Because of the occupational and puiialth hazards posed by conventional disposabieges, public health policy make
domestic organizations, and government agencies haen involved in the effort to get more effectbadety needle products to health:
workers. Federal legislation was signed into lawNovember 6, 2000, by former President Willianfelson Clinton. This legislation, whi
became effective for most states on April 12, 20@y requires safety needle products be used @waist majority of procedures. Howe
even with this requirement, hospitals are neglgdtinfollow the law intended to protect healthcakers.

Methods of Marketing and Distribution

Under the current supply chain system in the UcBteacare market, the vast majority of decisionatireg to the contracting for a
purchasing of medical supplies are made by theesgmtatives of group purchasing organizations (“€P@ther than the endsers of th
product (nurses, doctors, and testing personigie GPOs and large manufacturers often enter mttracts which can prohibit or limit en
in the marketplace by competitors.

We distribute our products throughout the U.S. #rdterritories through general line and specialtgtributors. We also utili:
international distributors. We have developed tonal direct marketing network in order to market products to health care customers
their purchaser representatives. Our marketersencakitact with all of the departments that affért tecisiormaking process for safe
products, including the purchasing agents. Thdlyoteacute care and alternate care sites and sgieadtly with the decisiomrakers of thes
facilities. We employ trained clinicians, includirregistered nurses and/or medical technologisi$ #uucate healthcare providers
healthcare workers on the use of safety devicesutfir onsite clinical training, exhibits at related tradesis, and publications of relevi
articles in trade journals and magazines. Thesgesrovide clinical support to customers. Initdald to marketing our products, the netw
demonstrates the safety and cost effectivenessedfanishPoin® automated retraction products staruers.

In the needle and syringe market, the market skager, BD, has utilized, among other things, @uitr which have restricted «
entry into the market. Other needle related prtglo@anufactured by us that are being denied madess as a result of BD’s antimpetitive
actions include the 1V safety catheters and blaabction tube holders.

We have numerous agreements with organizationthéodistribution of our products in foreign marketa Canada, the provinces
Alberta, Manitoba, Ontario, and Saskatchewan hassgd laws or regulations regarding healthcare avaglfety and the use of safe ne
products. In Europe, the European Council adoptdiaective requiring the use of safe needle prtedicEU countries to prevent needles
injuries. Brazil is the only country in Latin Amea that has initiated a regulation requiring thee wf safe needle products to pre
needlestick injuries. The Australian states of Ngwuth Wales, Queensland, and Victoria have guidslor directives regarding the preven
of needlestick injuries.

Key components of our strategy to increase our ataskare are to: (a) defeat monopolistic practihesugh litigation; (b) focus ¢
methods of upgrading our manufacturing capabilitg afficiency in order to enable us to reduce castsimprove profit margins; (c) contir
marketing emphasis in the U.S.; (d) continue to ¥dterans Administration facilities, health depagtits, emergency medical services, fec
prisons, longerm care, and home healthcare facilities as custeinte) educate healthcare providers, insuregdthuare workers, governmi
agencies, government officials, and the generalipuam the reduction of risk and the cost effeatigess afforded by our products; (f) sug
product through GPOs and Integrated Delivery Nekaavhere possible; (g)
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consider possibilities for future licensing agreeiseand joint venture agreements for the manufaauad distribution of safety products in
U.S. and abroad; (h) introduce new products; anid¢rease international sales.

Status of Publicly Announced New Products

We have applied for patent protection and are énptocess of developing additional safety medicatlpcts which have yet to
announced.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We purchase most of our product components fromleiauppliers, including needle adhesives and prngamaterials. There ¢
multiple sources of these materials. We own thédmthat are used to manufacture the plastic coesnof our products in the U.S. (
current suppliers include Magor Mold, Inc., ChanRgme Alliance, Exacto Spring Corporation, Stenigs, and Kovacmed.

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and Proprietarytfigh

We and Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder and CEO, eniteieed Technology License Agreement dated effectis of the 23rd day
June 1995 (the “Technology License Agreement”), iwbg Mr. Shaw granted us “.a worldwide exclusive license and right under
‘Licensed Patents’ and ‘Information’, to manufaetumarket, sell and distribute ‘Licensed Produetsd ‘Improvementswithout right tc
sublicense and subject to such nonexclusive rightsnay be possessed by the Federal GovernmentLi¢ensed Patents’, ‘Information’
‘Licensed Products’, and ‘Improvements’e all defined extensively in the Technology LeerAgreement. We may enter into sublicer
arrangements with Mr. Shaw’s written approval of terms and conditions of the licensing agreemdihie ‘Licensed Productshclude al
retractable syringes and retractable fluid samptlegices and components thereof, assembled or emated, which comprise an invent
described in ‘Licensed Patents’, and improvememéseto including any and all ‘Productshich employ the inventive concept disclose
claimed in the ‘Licensed PatentsVe and Mr. Shaw entered into the First Amendmerifgochnology Agreement July 3, 2008, whereby
amended the Technology License Agreement in omérdlude certain additional patent applicationddf@ssing norsyringe patents) own
by Mr. Shaw to the definition of “Patent Properties set forth in the Technology License Agreemerthabsuch additional patent applicati
would be covered by the license granted by Mr. Stwaus.

In exchange for the Technology License Agreemertnegotiated a licensing fee and agreed to pay aoy#dty on gross sales at
returns. The license terminates upon expiratiotheflast licensed patents unless sooner terminatddr certain circumstances. The licen
fees have been paid in accordance with this agneewith the exception of $1,500,000 in fees whickrevwaived in 2002 and $1,000,00
fees which were waived in 2009.

We have the right and obligation to obtain protattof the inventions, including prosecution of pateroperties. The licen
unilaterally changes to a nonexclusive licensehdvent of a hostile takeover. Also, if Mr. Shiawoluntarily loses control of the Compa
the license becomes a nonexclusive license arghatd information.

We seek foreign patent protection through the Rammoperation Treaty and have filed applicationsrémgional and national pat:
protection in selected countries where we beliawepooducts can be utilized most.

We hold numerous U.S. patents related to our autmnaetraction technology, including patents fordafety catheters, winged
sets, syringes, dental syringes, and blood cofiedtibe holders. In addition, we have multiplelaagions for patents currently pending. -
initial revolutionary spring action syringe patemtsl expire beginning in May 2015. However, a sfggant patent will not expire until Augt
2016. We have also registered the following traglees and trademarks: VanishPd&int , VanishPoiloigos, RT with a circle mark, the Sp
Logo used in packaging our products, and the ambded spots on the ends of our syringes. We alse trademark protection for the phi
“The New Standard for Safety.”
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We are involved in patent litigation detailedliam 3. Legal Proceedings We have decided, on the advice of patent counseltc
purchase patent insurance because it would reiaippropriate disclosure of information that isremtly proprietary and confidential.

In 2011 we obtained roughly 67.1% of our finishedducts through Double Dove, a Chinese manufactuvée believe we cou
make up any longerm disruption in these supplies by utilizing maoffethe capacity at the Little EIm facility, excefor 0.5mL, autodisabl
5mL, and 10mL syringes which comprised about 9.1%uo 2011 revenues.

Seasonality

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelatart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season. In
third quarter of 2009, we were awarded a contrgahb Department of Health and Human Services (“[3MHo supply a portion of the saft
engineered syringes to be used in the U.S. effordsiccinate the U.S. population against the siflineThe impact on us was material in 20
Sales to the DHHS comprised 24.4% of our revenoethé twelve months ended December 31, 2009.

Working Capital Practices

Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted araglinvestments with original maturities of threenths or less.

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custon@us. allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that arétflduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistaddl based on a percentage of receivables outstan@hese provisions are reviewet
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulsifgounts. Trade receivables are charged off vthere is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgleent when payment has not been made withinraonterms.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or regrlith cost being determined using actual avecageé The Company compares
average cost to the market price and records therlwalue. Management considers such factorseaarttount of inventory on hand and in
distribution channel, estimated time to sell suntentory, the shelf life of inventory, and curremarket conditions when determining exces
obsolete inventories. A reserve is establishe@fgrexcess or obsolete inventories or they mayriiten off.

Receivables are established for federal and stedestwhere we have determined we are entitled refuand for overpayments
estimated taxes or loss carrybacks.

Accounts payable and other shtetm liabilities include amounts that we believe mave an obligation for at the end of year. T
included charges for goods or services receivedOihl but not billed to us at the end of the yelaralso included estimates of poten
liabilities such as rebates and other fees.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providdsat a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artied the distributoss facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipca We will not accept returned goods withouetrned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theumrid

Our domestic return policy also generally provitlest a customer may return product that is ovekstdc Overstocking returns i
limited to two times in each 12 month period upléd of distributors total purchase of products for the prior 12 magmhiod upon th
following terms: i) an “overstocked” product is thgortion of distributor’s inventory of the produehich exceeds distribut@’sales volume fi
the product during the preceding four months; igtributor must not have taken delivery of the pretdwhich is overstocked during -
preceding four months; iii) overstocked productdhiey distributor in excess of 12 months from th&edsf original invoice will not be eligib
for return; iv) the product must have an expiratitate of at least 24 months from the date of retdyrthe overstocked product must be retu
to us in our saleable case cartons which are urapand
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untampered, with no broken or t@ped seals; vi) distributor will be granted a d@redich may be used only to purchase other pragfrom us
the credit to be in the amount of the invoice pa¢ehe returned product less a 10% restockingafieieh will be assessed against distributor’
subsequent purchase of product; vii) distributorstmabtain an authorization code from our distribatdepartment and affix the code to
returned product; and viii) distributor shall bélae cost of shipping the returned products to A product overstocks and returns are sut
to inspection and acceptance by us.

Our international contracts do not provide for agtyrns.

Dependence on Major Customers

Four customers accounted for an aggregate of 50f68ar revenue in 2011. We have numerous othéomess and distributors tt
sell our products in the U.S. and internationally.

Backlog Orders

Order backlog is not material to our business inasmas orders for our products generally are receand filled on a current ba:
except for items temporarily out of stock.

Government Funding of Research and Right to License

Thomas J. Shaw developed his initial version ofafety syringe with the aid of grants by the Natiohestitute of Drug Abuse,
subsidiary of the National Institutes of Healths Aresult, the federal government has the righgre/the public interest justifies it, to dispt
the technology to multiple manufacturers so thé &arly version of a safety syringe could be maitkely available to the public. Howev
the earlier design of 1991 was a bulkier, lessctiffe, and more expensive version of the curremisf#Point® syringe product. According!
Management believes that the risk of the governmdentanding manufacture of this alternative prodsiotinimal. The VanishPoirft syringe
design was only partly funded with grant money #mel product, as sold, incorporates technology fbictv the government has no rigt
Therefore the government has no right to allow ksthie manufacture the VanishPofht  syringe.

Government Approval and Government Regulations

For all products manufactured for sale in the ddinesarket we have given notice of intent to markethe FDA and the devices w
shown to be substantially equivalent to the pradid@vices for the stated intended use.

For all products manufactured for sale in the fgmeinarket, we hold a certificate of Quality Systeempliance with ISO 13485. V
also have approval to label products for sale Edioopean Union countries with a CE Mark. We widhtinue to comply with the regulatc
regulations of all countries in which our produate registered for sale.

Competitive Conditions

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanades primarily in the U.S. (with 17.0% of revesua 2011 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not lidite, acute care hospitals, alternate care faslitdoctorsboffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetetansinistration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons.

We compete primarily on the basis of product penfance and quality. We believe our competitive atlvges include, but are |
limited to, our leadership in quality and innovati®e believe our products continue to be the mafisttive safety devices in todaymarket
Our syringe products include passive safety adtmatequire less disposal space, and are activatel@ in the patient, effectively reduci
exposure to the contaminated needle. Our priceipieis competitive or even lower than the contpmationce all the costs
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incurred during the life cycle of a syringe are sidered. Such life cycle costs include disposais;dssting and treatment costs for needle
injuries, and treatment for contracted illnessesugh needlestick injuries.

Major domestic competitors include BD and Covidigd. (“Covidien”). Terumo Medical Corp. (“Terumqg”"pmiths Medical, and
Braun are additional competitors with smaller masteare.

Founded in 1897, BD is headquartered in New Jer8dy's safety-engineered device sales accountedgdproximately 24% of BI¥’
total 2011 sales. Included as safetygineered devices manufactured by BD are the \Baflet, a syringe that utilizes a tubular plastieatt
that must be manually slid over the needle afteingattion, and the SafetyGlide™, a needle whidlizes a hinged lever to cover the net
tip. BD also manufactures a safety blood collecémd hypodermic needle that utilizes the Eclipgeg#dle cover. BD also manufactured
Integra 3mL retracting needle product. BD’s “Vadnéa® ” blood collection products are commonly used asstgijargon to refer to blot
collection products in general.

Both BD’s SafetyLok™ and Covidien’s Monojettsafety syringes require the use of two hands anerakextra steps to activate
tubular plastic shield which must be slid and latk&to place to protect the needle. These producist be removed from the patient pric
activation, resulting in exposure to the contan@dateedle. In contrast, use of the VanishP®isyringe is identical to that of a stanc
syringe until the end of an injection, when theoauaited retraction mechanism retracts the needéettlifrom the patient safely into the ba
of the syringe. This allows both hands to remaifiely out of harm’s way.

BD and Covidien have controlling U.S. market shape=ater financial resources; larger and more bskedal sales, marketing,
distribution organizations; and greater marketuafice, including longerm and/or exclusive contracts. The current diovd have restricte
competition in the needle and syringe market. B&yrbe able to use its resources to improve itsymotsdthrough research or acquisition
develop new products, which may compete more éffgtwith our products.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the maketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techgglantroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We continue tu$oon methods of upgrading our manufacturing déifyaland efficiency in order to redu
costs.

Our safety needle products have an advantage averatracting safety needles because minimal trgiand changes to practitioners’
normal routines are required. Use of our prodws® prohibits unfortunate and improper reuse. eBdvfactors could materially a
beneficially affect the marketability of our prodsic Demand could be increased by existing legisiaand other legislative and investiga
efforts. Licensing agreements could provide ety new markets and generate additional reverugther, outsourcing arrangements ci
increase our manufacturing capacity with littlenorcapital outlay and provide a competitive cost.

Two well-established companies control most of the U.S. etarOur competitive position is also weakened Iy nethod th:
providers use for making purchasing decisions heddct that our initial price per unit for our ebf needle products may be higher.

Research and Development

We spent $1,030,622; $885,445; and $815,018 ialfid@09, 2010, and 2011 respectively, on researdidavelopment. Costs in 2(
were primarily for samples, testing, and compensgatiOur ongoing research and development activiie performed by an internal rese
and development staff. This team of engineerseigelbping process improvements for current andréuutomated machines. Our limi
access to the market has slowed the introductioproflucts. Possible future products include otieedle medical devices to which
automated retraction mechanism can be applied hssvether safety medical devices.

Environmental Compliance

We believe that we do not incur material costs amnection with compliance with environmental lawd/e are considered
Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator bessawe generate less than 100 kilograms
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(220 Ibs.) of hazardous waste per month. Therefoseare exempt from the reporting requirementsfah by the Texas Commission
Environmental Quality. The waste that is generatieour facility is primarily made up of flammabliguids and paintelated waste and is s
for fuel blending by Safety Kleen. This fuel blémgl process completely destroys our waste andfigatisur “cradle-to-grave” responsibility.

Other nonhazardous production waste includes q@e&ypropylene regrind that is recycled. All ottremhazardous waste produce
considered municipal solid waste and sent to aagnriandfill by CWD.

We also produce small amounts of regulated bioldazer waste from contaminated sharps and laboratasyes. This waste is s
for incineration by Stericycle.

Employees
As of March 1, 2012, we had 148 employees. 14&loh employees were full time employees.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

We have minimal londived assets in foreign countries. Shipments terimational customers generally require a prepayreigmer b
wire transfer or an irrevocable confirmed lettercoédit. We do extend credit to international oustrs on some occasions depending
certain criteria, including, but not limited toetleredit worthiness of the customer, the stabdityhe country, banking restrictions, and the
of the order. All transactions are in U.S. curgen@Ve attribute sales to countries based on tk&rdgion of shipment.

2011 2010 2009

U.S. sale: $ 26,655,78 $ 29,577,055 $ 34,466,79
North and South America sales (excluding U 4,736,35! 4,887,07. 1,764,58
Other international sale 710,15¢ 1,755,43! 2,750,45!
Total sales $ 32,102,29 $ 36,219,56 $ 38,981,83
Long-lived asset:

u.s. $ 12,412,50 $ 12,297,94 $ 13,961,44

International $ 241,35 $ 262,65 $ 272,73

Most international sales are filled by productiooni Double Dove. In the event that we become wntbpurchase such product fr
Double Dove, we would need to find an alternatepigpfor the 0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mL adisable syringe, and the 5mL and 1(
syringes. We would increase domestic productioriife 1mL and 3mL syringes to avoid a disruptiosupply.

Available Information

We make available, free of charge on our websit@wwanishpoint.com), our Form 10-K Annual Reportidform 10Q Quarterl
reports and current reports on Form 8-K (and angratments to such reports) as soon as reasonakljcptafter such reports are filed.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.
We could be subject to complex and costly reguatactivities. Our business could suffer if we aur csuppliers encount
manufacturing problems. We could be subject tksrigssociated with doing business outside of ti& Wurrent or worsening econol

conditions may adversely affect our business amahfiial condition.

You should carefully consider the following matériaks facing us. If any of these risks occurf business, results of operations
financial condition could be materially affected.
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We Compete in a Monopolistic Marketplace

We operate in an environment that is dominated By #e major syringe manufacturer in the U.S. Weehsued BD allegir
violations of antitrust acts, false advertisingogquict disparagement, tortious interference, andiuobmpetition. It is anticipated that this :
will be scheduled to be tried in fall 2012.

Although we have made limited progress in somesargach as the alternate care and internationgtetgrour volumes are not
high as they should be given the nature and quaflibur products and the federal and state ledgislaequiring the use of safe needle devices.

We Have Generally Been Unable to Gain SufficientidaAccess to Achieve Profitable Operations

We have a history of incurring net operating loss#ée may experience operating losses in the futlfeve are unable to ge
sufficient market access and market share, we reaynhble to continue to finance research and dpnedat as well as support operations
expansion of production.

We Are Dependent on Our Aging Patent Protection

Our main competitive strength is our technologye Wfe dependent on our patent rights, and if otenpaights are invalidated
circumvented, our business would be adversely tftecPatent protection is considered, in the aggies to be of material importance in
marketing of products in the U.S. and in most mégweign markets. Patents covering products thathave introduced normally prov
market exclusivity, which is important for the sassful marketing and sale of our products.

As our technology ages (and the associated pafergXpires), our competitive position in the magtace will weaken. The initi
revolutionary spring action syringe patents wilpgg beginning in May 2015. However, a significpatent will not expire until August 20:
Patent life may be extended, not through the oailgpatents, but through related improvements. @hility to improve these patents
uncertain. Eventually, however, our patent prabecinay decrease and we will be vulnerable to otlenpetitors utilizing our technology.

Our Patents Are Subject to Litigation

We have been sued by BD and MDC Investment Holdiimgs for patent infringement. There is currenly trial date set for tt
litigation. Patent litigation and challenges inviog our patents are costly and unpredictable aagt deprive us of market exclusivity fo
patented product or, in some cases, third pargnpsimay prevent us from marketing and sellingoayet in a particular geographic area.

We Are Vulnerable to New Technologies

Because we have a narrow focus on particular ptdéwes and technology (currently predominantlyaetable needle products),
are vulnerable to the development of superior camgeroducts and to changes in technology whialdeliminate or reduce the need for
products. If a superior technology is created,dimand for our products could greatly diminish.

Our Competitors Have Greater Resources

Our competitors have greater financial resourcagelr and more established sales and marketinglistribution organizations, a
greater market influence, including lotgrm contracts. These competitors may be ablseadhese resources to improve their products tim
research and acquisitions or develop new prodwdig;h may compete more effectively with our productf our competitors choose to
their resources to create products superior to, amesmay be unable to sell our products and oulitghdo continue operations would
weakened.
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The Majority of Our International Sales Are Fillelding One Supplier

Most international syringe sales are filled by proiibn from Double Dove. In the event that we bmeounable to purchase s
product from Double Dove, we would need to findadternate supplier for the 0.5mL insulin syringee 0.5mL autodisable syringe, and
5mL and 10mL syringes. We would increase domgstiduction for the 1mL and 3mL syringes to avoiistuption in supply.

Fluctuations in Supplies of Inventory Could Tempitydncrease Costs

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawterals and inventory and the ability to mainta@wdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll of our products in the U.S. This could temgrily increase unit costs as we ramj
domestic production.

We Are Controlled by One Shareholder

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chief Executiffedd, beneficially owned 30.9% of the outstandi@@mmon Stock (ar
controlled another 15.0% pursuant to a Voting Agreet with Ms. Suzanne August and trust agreementthé benefit of family members)
of March 1, 2012. Mr. Shaw will, therefore, have tability to direct our operations and financiffais and to substantially influence
election of members of our Board of Directors. Hiterests may not always coincide with our intteyes the interests of other stockhold:
This concentration of ownership, for example, mayehthe effect of delaying, deferring, or prevemtinchange in control, impeding a mer
consolidation, takeover, or other business comlainahvolving us, or discouraging a potential acqufrom making a tender offer or otherw
attempting to obtain control of us, which in tuilwutd materially adversely affect the market prif@ar Common Stock.

We Have Limited Access to the Capital Markets

The volume of trading in our Common Stock on theS¥EYAmex LLC (the “NYSE Amex”)formerly the American Stock Exchan
is low. Accordingly, it is unclear if there is amsjgnificant market for our shares. This may redoar ability to raise cash through public
private offerings in the future.

Our Stock Price Is Low

Our stock price may be deemed to have been séfiim@g substantial period of time at a low price phare”which may result in o1
receipt of a notification from the NYSE Amex thateverse split is necessary. We have receiveduch sotification. When a compe
receives such a notification, failure to effecteaarse stock split may result in suspension or x@nfsom trading on the NYSE Amex. T
NYSE Amex may initiate delisting procedures indiscretion. Delisting of our shares would greatffiect the liquidity of our shares and wa
reduce our ability to raise funds from the saleeqgfiity in the future. However, we believe suchidliely application to be unlikel
Furthermore, in the event that we receive a defmjdetter from the NYSE Amex, we will have thehido appeal such determination.

Current Economic Conditions May Decrease Colletitstmf Accounts

Although we believe that we have granted creditreditworthy firms, current economic conditions may afféwe timing and/c
collectability of some accounts.

We Face Inherent Product Liability Risks

As a manufacturer and provider of safety needleyxts, we face an inherent business risk of exgosuproduct liability claims. If
product liability claim is made and damages arexoess of our product liability coverage, our cotitjye position could be weakened by
amount of money we could be required to pay to aamspte those injured by our products. In the ewémt recall, we do not have re«
insurance.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable and none.

Item 2. Properties.

Our headquarters is located at 511 Lobo Lane, oacd8s, which we own, overlooking Lake Lewisvilieliittle EIm, Texas. Tt
headquarters are in good condition and house ommirgstrative offices and manufacturing facility.hd manufacturing facility produc
approximately 32.4% of the units that were manufisect in 2011. In the event of a disruption in g@of our outside supplier, Double D¢
we believe we could produce quantities sufficientrteet demand under current circumstances excepefoand for 0.5mL, 5mL, and 101
syringes. In that event, we would attempt to eegagother manufacturer. The 5mL and 10mL syrimgessold principally in the internatiol
market. In 2011, we utilized approximately onedrof our current U.S. productive capacity.

A $4,210,000 loan to expand our warehouse was reth@m December 10, 2009 with a 20 year amortizadioh 10 year maturit
The interest rate is 5.968%.

In the opinion of Management, the property and apeint are suitable for their intended use and dexj@ately covered by
insurance policy.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

In June 2010, BD filed an appeal in the U.S. Cofithppeals (the “Court”for the Federal Circuit appealing a final judgmentere:
on May 19, 2010 for us and against BDXounterclaims in patent litigation. Such finatigment ordered that we recover $5,000,000
prejudgment interest, and ordered a permanentdtipmfor BD's 1mL and 3mL Integra syringes until the expiratadrcertain patents. T
permanent injunction was stayed for the longehefdéxhaustion of the appeal of the district cauctise or twelve months from May 19, 2C
In July 2011, a three-judge panel of the Court rese the district court’s judgment that BD’s 3mltelgra infringed our ‘224 patent an@77
patent. The Court affirmed the district court’sigment that the 1mL Integra infringes our ‘244 aA83 patents. The Court also affirmed
district court’s judgment that th@77 patent is not invalid for anticipation or obwsmess. Out of eight principal issues that werdested i
the appeal, we and an officer prevailed on six BBdprevailed on two. We had petitioned for a retrgaby all the judges of the Fede
Circuit as to whether the thrgedge panel properly construed our patent clainglage in finding that the 3mL Integra did not infé. Ou
petition for rehearing by all of the judges of #hederal Circuit was denied with two dissents béssged. We have filed a petition for certio
asking the Supreme Court to review the matter.t phtition should be accepted or rejected by Oat@bé?2.

In May 2010, our and an officer’suit against BD in the U.S. District Court foe tBastern District of Texas, Marshall Division gltgg
violations of antitrust acts, false advertisingpguct disparagement, tortious interference, an@iumbmpetition was reopened. We ant
officer filed a Second Amended Complaint on July 2310 setting forth additional detail regarding #ilegations of BL¥ illegal conduct. B
filed a motion to dismiss and the Court denied thation in part and granted it in part, grantingthus right to replead certain allegations
May 13, 2011. We and an officer filed a Third Amded Complaint in May 2011, setting forth additiodeatail regarding the alleged ille:
conduct by BD. Trial was initially set for Febrya&012. However, in January 2012 the parties agrea continuance to allow the petition
certiorari to be considered. As a result of retieat, a new judge will be assigned. It is cursebtlieved that trial will proceed in the fall
2012.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdimgs, (“MDC”) sued us in the United States District Court for Beester
District of Texas, Texarkana Division, initiallylagjing that we are infringing two U.S. patents ob® (6,179,812 and 7,090,656) that
licensed to BD. BD and MDC seek injunctive religfdaunspecified damages. We counterclaimed foradatibns of norinfringement
invalidity, and unenforceability of the assertedepés. The plaintiffs subsequently dropped alliegat with regard to patent no. 7,090,656
we subsequently dropped our counterclaims for woreghbility of the asserted patents. The Courtlooted a claims construction hearing
September 25, 2008 and issued its claims congtructider on November 14, 2008. There is currembiyrial date set for this case. We t
filed a motion for summary judgment that is now gieqg.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
PART I
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases ofdtity Securities.
MARKET INFORMATION
Our Common Stock has been listed on the NYSE Anredeuthe symbol “RVPsince May 4, 2001. Our closing price on Marc

2012, was $1.20 per share. Shown below are the dmghlow sales prices of our Common Stock as refddoy the NYSE Amex for ea
quarter of the last two fiscal years:

2011 High Low
Fourth Quarte $1.45 $1.00
Third Quartel $1.56 $1.10
Second Quarte $1.78 $1.30
First Quarte $2.25 $1.38

2010 High Low
Fourth Quarte $1.93 $1.35
Third Quartel $1.88 $0.83
Second Quarte $1.80 $1.20
First Quarte $2.03 $1.31

SHAREHOLDERS

As of March 1, 2012, there were 25,318,700 shafgSommmon Stock held by 265 shareholders of recatdincluding shareholde
who beneficially own Common Stock held in nomineéstreet name.”

DIVIDENDS

We have not ever declared or paid any dividendthenCommon Stock. We have no current plans togmgycash dividends on 1
Common Stock. We intend to retain all earningsegx those required to be paid to the holders efRtfeferred Stock as resources alloy
support operations and future growth. Dividends @smmon Stock cannot be paid so long as preferiedleshds are unpaid. As
December 31, 2011, there was an aggregate of $1i0i@n in preferred dividends in arrears.
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Seeltem 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Omers and Management and Related Stockholder Matterfor a char
describing compensation plans under which equityisiges are authorized.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The following graph compares the cumulative togalim for our Common Stock from December 31, 2@0Bé¢cember 31, 2011, to -
total returns for the Russell Microc& and Becbitkinson and Company (or “BDX"j peer issuer. The graph assumes an investir

$100 in the aforementioned equities as of Decer@beP006, and that all dividends are reinvested.
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COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

We exchanged 1,246,964 shares of Common Stockdasit) for 1,246,964 shares of our Class B Converflbeferred Stock as
November 4, 2011 pursuant to the 2011 Exchanger Offée exchanged 30,500 shares of Common Stock ¢asld) for 30,500 shares of
Preferred Stock as of December 30, 2011 outsidihef2011 Exchange Offer. The 2011 Exchange Offaes wffered to all our Preferr
Stockholders. The sales outside of the 2011 Exgdh&ifer were made to three of our Preferred Studdehs who did not participate in
2011 Exchange Offer. In accordance with the teofnboth exchange transactions, participating PreteStockholders agreed to waive
unpaid dividends in arrears associated with treidéred Preferred Stock. Both transactions armgxfom registration under the Securi
Act pursuant to Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Because the securities were exchanged withirxisecurity holders exclusively where
commission or other remuneration was paid or giieectly or indirectly for soliciting such exchange

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND RAIEIATED PURCHASERS

No shares or other units of equity securities tegésl pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Acewerchased by us in the fou
qguarter of 2011. As discussed above, our Prefe3tedk, which is not registered pursuant to Sect®wf the Exchange Act, was purchase
us in the fourth quarter of 2011.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data is qualifiegt reference to, and should be read in conjunctiith, our audited financi
statements and the notes to those statements andgelmens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord d&esults of Operatio
appearing elsewhere herein. The selected Statsrméfperations data presented below for the yeaded December 31, 2008 and 2007
the Balance Sheet data as of December 31, 200%, 200 2007 have been derived from our auditechéii@ statements, which are
included herein.
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(In thousands except for earnings per share, shamdspercentages)*

As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Sales, ne $ 32,10 $ 36,21¢ 3 38,98. $ 27,89¢ $ 26,29(
Cost of sale: 21,19¢ 23,69¢ 25,46¢ 19,67 18,30(
Gross profil 10,90: 12,52: 13,51¢ 8,22¢ 7,99(
Total operating expens: 14,99 19,18t 26,817 18,67 17,93¢
Loss from operation (4,090 (6,664 (13,29¢) (10,445 (9,946
Interest incomt 63 32 58 85t 1,87(C
Interest expense, n (242) (302) (22 (54) (326)
Litigation settlements, nt 5,70( 9,15¢ — — —
Income (loss) before income tax 1,43 2,22¢ (13,260 (9,649 (8,402)
Provision (benefit) for income tax 14 (17€) (3,839 — (1,459
Net income (loss 1,41¢ 2,401 (9,427) (9,649 (6,94
Preferred Stock dividend requireme (964) (1,379) (1,379 (1,379 (1,399
Earnings (loss) applicable to common

shareholder $ 454 $ 1,03C $ (10,799 $ (11,01) $ (8,347)
Earnings (loss) per sha— basic $ 0.0z $ 004 $ (0453 (0.46) $ (0.35)
Earnings (loss) per sha— diluted $ 0.0z $ 0.04 $ (049 3 (0.46) 3 (0.35)
Weighted average shares outstan— basic 24,171,23 23,872,78 23,806,53 23,794,56 23,727,02
Weighted average shares outstan— diluted 26,354,78 26,248,87. 23,806,53 23,794,56 23,727,02
Current assel $ 35,748 $ 40,22 $ 39,26: $ 4361 $ 51,91¢
Current liabilities $ 5967 $ 9,98t $ 13,19¢ $ 10,23t $ 8,78¢
Property, plant, and equipment, | $ 12,65: $ 12,56. $ 14,23: $ 14,43¢ $ 11,48:
Total asset $ 48,76: $ 53,19. $ 53,94. $ 58,563¢ $ 64,33(
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti $ 4,14 % 4,30 $ 482t $ 6,09¢ $ 3,741
Stockholder’ equity $ 38,65. $ 38,90 $ 35,92( $ 42,20¢ $ 51,76
Redeemable Preferred Stock (in sha 1,001,55: 2,279,011 2,285,261 2,285,261 2,329,911
Capital lease
Cash dividends per common sh $ — $ — $ — 3 — $ —
Gross profit margit 34.(% 34.€% 34.71% 29.5% 30.4%
* Events that could affect the tremtlicated above include continued reductions in ufecturing costs, changirgyerage sales pric

the gaining of market access, and protection ofpatents. As our products are made from petrolptoducts, the changing cost of oil
transportation may have an impact on our costhéeoeixtent increases may not be recoverable thrpugk increases of our products
reductions in oil prices may not quickly affect gd¢um product prices. Sales to the Departmertiedith and Human Services (“DHHS”
comprised 24.4% of our revenues for the twelve im@ended December 31, 2009, which affects comgayaietween 2009 and other yes
Receipt of settlement proceeds and option paynfemts Abbott and Hospira positively affected 201@ &9011 results. Cost cutting meas
implemented at the end of the second quarter of
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2009 and an agreement reached in the second qoé&r2&10 with our litigation counsel to cap certédgal fees should both contribute 1
lower level of expenses going forward. Our purehias2011 of a total of 1,277,464 shares of oufdPred Stock (which purchase required
selling Preferred Stockholder to waive all unpaididiends in arrears) in exchange for our Commorcistnd cash will reduce our Prefer
Stock Dividend Requirements going forward.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiagficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute forvkmoking statements within the meaning of the Pava8ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forward{ooking statements involve known and unknown riskacertainties, and other factors that may causeaotual result
performance, or achievements to be materially difie from any future results, performance, or aghieents expressed or implied by s
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amoingrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our maintnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation, our ability to maiiafavorable supplier arrangements and relatiorsstopr ability to quickly increase capacity
response to an increase in demand, our abilitetess the market, our ability to maintain or lowssduction costs, our ability to continue
finance research and development as well as opesasind expansion of production, the increasedest®f larger market players, specific
BD, in providing devices to the safety market, atiter factors referenced item 1A. Risk Factors. Given these uncertainties, undue relii
should not be placed on forward-looking statements.

OVERVIEW

We have been manufacturing and marketing our ptsdato the marketplace since 1997. Safety syangemprised 97.2% of ¢
sales in 2011. We also manufacture and markeblthed collection tube holder and the IV safety et¢h. We currently provide other sa
medical products in addition to safety productdizitig retractable technology. One such producthis Patient Safé syringe, which i
uniquely designed to reduce the risk of bloodstradactions resulting from catheter hub contamiiati

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelafiart of the year due, in part, to the demands§winges during the flu season.
2009, we had a contract to provide DHHS with syegdo be used in the U.S. efforts to provide swiinevaccinations. This contract w
material for 2009 and affects comparability to 2@i@@ncial data.

Our products have been and continue to be dis&tbnationally and internationally through numerdistributors. Although we ha
made limited progress in some areas, such as theale care market, our volumes are not as highes should be given the nature
quality of our products and the federal and staggslation requiring the use of safe needle deviddse alternative care market is compose
alternate care facilities that provide long-ternrsing and oupatient surgery, emergency care, and physicianicesrv The fact that o
progress is limited is principally due to exclusivarketing practices engaged in by BD, the domimaalter and seller of disposable syrir
and other needle products, which practices havekbtbus from access to the market. A suit ag&ibsis currently pending alleging violatic
of state and federal antitrust acts and false déidirgg. BD has ceased marketing the infringing limiegra syringe.

We continue to pursue various strategies to hattertaccess to the hospital market, as well asrottzgkets, including attempting
gain access to the market through our sales effautsinnovative technology, introduction of nevegucts, and, when necessary, litigation.

In the event we continue to have only limited markecess and the cash provided by the litigatidtleseents and generated fr
operations becomes insufficient, we would take @althl cost cutting measures to reduce cash regeinés. Such measures could result ir
reduction of units being produced, the reduction of
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workforce, the reduction of salaries of officerslather nonhourly employees, and the deferral péltg payments. We took such action
the end of the second quarter of 2009. Salaryatashs put in place in the second quarter of 2@8ain in place.

We are bringing additional molding operations tttleiEIm as a cost saving measure. The additidiowf molding machines in 20
is part of that endeavor. We continue to focusnathods of upgrading our manufacturing capabilityl efficiency in order to reduce costs.

Effective July 12, 2010, we entered into a settleimagreement with Abbott and Hospira. In connectigith this settleme
agreement, we granted Hospira an exclusive oneget#wn to negotiate a licensing agreement foratentises of our Patient Sefesyringe.
This option expired unexercised in July 2011. Véeehreceived the total $8 million option paymeAs part of the settlement, in the tf
quarter of 2010, Hospira paid us $6 million andyfre a marketing fee of $1.4 million. The settlameas reduced by an outstanding inv
due to us for $144 thousand.

In the second quarter of 2010, we reached an agmtenith our counsel, Locke Lord LLP, regardinguiet litigation expenditures tf
caps certain of our litigation costs in exchangeafeontingent fee interest. We believe this ages# serves both our short-term and loegy
interests and will reduce the legal fee componénuo General and administrative costs and willtoare to impact our cash flow in a posit
manner.

On September 12, 2011, we commenced the 2011 EgeHafier. As of November 4, 2011, the expiratiabedof the 2011 Exchan
Offer, Preferred Stockholders had tendered theviolg number of shares of Preferred Stock: 1) 27 $ifares of Series | Preferred Stocl
41,000 shares of Series Il Preferred Stock; 3)hares of Series Il Preferred Stock were exchang®d;,000 shares of Series IV Prefe
Stock; and 5) 1,173,464 shares of Series V Prefesteck. A total of $1,308,275 and 1,246,964 shareCommon Stock were issuec
consideration to participating Preferred Stockhddaursuant to the 2011 Exchange Offer. In accaréavith the terms of the 2011 Excha
Offer, participating Preferred Stockholders agreedaive all unpaid dividends in arrears associatgl their tendered Preferred Stock, wt
resulted in a waiver of a total of $3,539,714 ipaid dividends in arrears.

As of December 30, 2011, we engaged in privatessai¢h three Preferred Stockholders which tendehedfollowing number ¢
shares of Preferred Stock: 1) 13,000 shares oeS&efPreferred Stock; 2) 5,000 shares of SerieBrdferred Stock; and 3) 12,500 share
Series V Preferred Stock. A total of $49,000 afid530 shares of Common Stock were issued as coasate to the three Prefen
Stockholders. In accordance with the terms ofptitieate sales, the three Preferred Stockholdersealgto waive all unpaid dividends in arre
associated with their tendered Preferred Stockchvigsulted in a waiver of a total of $97,079 ipaid dividends in arrears.

Product purchases from Double Dove, a Chinese maahugr, have enabled us to increase manufactedpgcity with little capit:
outlay and have provided a competitive manufactugost. In 2011, Double Dove manufactured appraxéty 67.1% of the units \
produced. We believe we could make up any lmwrg: disruption in these purchases by utilizing enof the capacity at the Little EIm facili
except for the 0.5mL insulin syringe, the 5mL ariinlL syringes, and the autodisable syringe whicbgaither comprised about 9.1% of
2011 revenues.

With increased volumes, our manufacturing unitedstve generally tended to decline. Factors thaldcaffect our unit costs inclu
increases in costs by third party manufactureranging production volumes, costs of petroleum petgjtand transportation costs. Increas
such costs may not be recoverable through priceases of our products.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains trend informatiand other forwardeoking statements that involve a number of risks
uncertainties. Our actual future results couldedifnaterially from our historical results of opgoas and those discussed in the forward-
looking statements. All period references areuofiscal years ended December 2011, 2010, or 2@@8lar amounts have been roundec
ease of reading.

16




Table of Contents

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2011 and Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues decreased 11.4%, due principally to lawwkmme and lower average sales price. Domestissakre 83.0% of revent
with international sales comprising the remaindenit sales decreased 6.3%. Domestic unit salesedsed 1.9% and average sales [
decreased 8.2%. International unit sales decres886 and average international selling pricesedesed 2.7%.

Cost of sales decreased due to lower volumes avet lonit costs. Royalty expenses decreased diogviy gross sales revenues.

As a result, gross profit margins decreased fror6%4n 2010 to 34.0% in 2011.

Operating expenses decreased 21.9% from the m@rdue to lower litigation cost of $2.9 millioewer stock option expense of $
million, bonuses paid in 2010 of $630 thousand, andmpairment charge of $365 thousand in 2010d @bt expense and legal expe
related to patent matters increased. Lower litigatosts are the result of an agreement betweandisur counsel to cap certain litigation f

Loss from operations was $4.1 million in 2011 conegéto an operating loss in 2010 of $6.7 million.

Litigation settlements, net reflects cash proce#d6.0 million net of a $300 thousand royalty payrm

The provision for income taxes consists principafiy43 thousand of state and local income taxdsaaeredit to federal income tax
$29 thousand.

Cash flow from operations was $5.5 million for 20dde principally to litigation settlements, a retioic in accounts receivat
balances and inventories. A decrease in accrabiiies and net income, mitigated the increasesish flow.

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2010 and Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenues decreased 7.1%, due principally to thectefff the DHHS contract in 2009. Domestic salesen81.7% of revenues w
international sales comprising the remainder. laites decreased 7.4%. Domestic unit sales dedeE88% and average sales pi
increased 3.2%. International unit sales incre84e®@% and average international selling pricessiased.

Cost of sales decreased due to lower volume ofyatosold. Royalty expenses increased due to highess sales as well as
litigation proceeds.

As a result, gross profit margins decreased skightim 34.7% in 2009 to 34.6% in 2010.

Operating expenses decreased 28.4% from the pe@ar gue to lower litigation costs, lower compemsattosts of $800 thousa
lower stock option expense of $771 thousand, ameddravel and entertainment costs of $178 thousabdr litigation costs for 2010 we
approximately $5.1 million less than the prior yeaower litigation costs are the result of an &gnent between us and our counsel tc
certain litigation fees. Additional reductionsémrpenses in 2010 as compared to 2009 include liedsadf $173 thousand for consulting, !
thousand in 401(k) expense, and $48 thousand fdtetiag expense.

In 2010, we recognized impairment charges of $86bidand for costs associated with research andagenent activities compared
impairment charges of $2.6 million in 2009 asseatith catheter production equipment.

Operating loss was $6.7 million in 2010 comparedni@perating loss in 2009 of $13.3 million.

Interest income decreased due to lower interess rainterest expense increased due to higherge/ésan balances and a reductio
capitalized interest.

17




Table of Contents

Litigation settlements, net reflects cash proce#d&8.0 million from Hospira and a waiver of $1.4llian in marketing fees payable
Abbott. A receivable from Abbott for $144 thousamds also waived. Royalties of $116,671 were paid result of the settlement.

Benefit for income taxes consists principally ofigidnal refunds due for our 2009 federal tax retreduced by $130 thousand du
Alternative Minimum Tax for 2010.

Cash flow from operations was $8.7 million for 2Gdu@ principally to litigation settlements and imped results from operations.
LIQUIDITY

At the present time, Management does not intemdige equity capital. Due to the funds receivednfiprior litigation settlements, \
have sufficient cash reserves and intend to relggmrations, cash reserves, and debt financinigeagrimary ongoing sources of cash.

Our cash position has improved $2.4 million, or320, over 2010. The improvement is related to gasivided by operatior
including litigation proceeds, reduced by the pasghof our preferred stock.

Historical Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded operations primarilyrr the proceeds from revenues, private placemigigation settlements, and loa

Internal Sources of Liquidity

Margins and Market Access

To routinely achieve break even quarters, we nemihmal access to hospital markets which has be#fitult to obtain due to tt
monopolistic marketplace which was the subject wf ioitial lawsuit and now also included in our ged antitrust lawsuit against BDWe
will continue to attempt to gain access to the ratitkrough our sales efforts, innovative technojdgg introduction of new products, a
when necessary, litigation.

We continue to focus on methods of upgrading ounufecturing capability and efficiency in order &xluce costs.

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawtaréls and inventory and our ability to mainta@tvdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll (as opposed to 32.4%) of our products inUt®. This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

The mix of domestic and international sales afftfutsaverage sales price of our products. Gegetak higher the ratio of domes
sales to international sales, the higher the aeesades price will be. Typically international eslare shipped directly from China to
customer. Purchases of product manufactured inaChi available, usually decrease the average afostanufacture for all units. Domes
costs, such as indirect labor and overhead, reneddtively constant. The number of units produbgdus versus manufactured in China
have a significant effect on the carrying costgwéntory as well as Cost of sales. We will conérto evaluate the appropriate mix of prod
manufactured domestically and those manufacturegdhima to achieve economic benefits as well as antain our domestic manufactur
capability.

Fluctuations in the cost of oil (since our produats petroleum based) and transportation and theneoof units purchased frc
Double Dove may have an impact on the unit costuofproduct. Increases in such costs may notteverable through price increases ol
products. Reductions in oil prices may not quickfect petroleum product prices.
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Seasonality

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelafiart of the year due, in part, to the demands§winges during the flu season.
2009, we had a contract to provide DHHS with syegdo be used in the U.S. efforts to provide swiinevaccinations. This contract w
material for 2009 and affects comparability to 2@i@@ncial data.

Cash Requirements

Due to funds received from prior litigation settients, we have sufficient cash reserves and intenely on operations, cash reser
and debt financing as the primary ongoing souréessh. In the event we continue to have onlytlhimarket access and cash generated
operations becomes insufficient to support openatiave would take additional cost cutting measuoeseduce cash requirements. S
measures could result in the reduction of unitsgpgroduced, the reduction of workforce, the reidmcof salaries of officers and otl
nonhourly employees, and the deferral of royaltyrpents.

External Sources of Liquidity

We have obtained several loans from our inceptidnich have, together with the proceeds from thessaf equities and litigatit
efforts, enabled us to pursue development and ptmou of our products. Given the current economamditions, our ability to obta
additional funds through loans is uncertain. Femttore, the shareholders previously authorizeddatitianal 5,000,000 shares of a Clas
Preferred Stock that could, if necessary, be deséghand used to raise funds through the salewfyegDue to the current market price of
Common Stock, it is unlikely we would choose taseafunds by the sale of equity.

Effective July 12, 2010, we entered into a settleimagreement with Abbott and Hospira. In connectigith this settleme
agreement, we granted Hospira an exclusive onegetion to negotiate a licensing agreement foratentises of our Patient Sefesyringe.
This option expired unexercised in July 2011. Véeehreceived the total $8 million option paymeAs part of the settlement, in the tf
quarter of 2010, Hospira paid us $6 million andyfre a marketing fee of $1.4 million. The settlameas reduced by an outstanding inv
due to us for $144 thousand.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Repurchase of Preferred Shares

On September 12, 2011, we commenced an offer tochpae all outstanding Class B Convertible PrefeBtatk (the Preferre:
Stock”) for cash and Common Stock (the “2011 Exgea®ffer”). As of November 4, 2011, the expiration date of26@1 Exchange Offe
Preferred Stockholders had tendered a total of6]1984 shares of Preferred Stock. A total of $1,308 and 1,246,964 shares of Comi
Stock were issued as consideration to participaRiregerred Stockholders pursuant to the 2011 Exg@ffer. In accordance with the term
the 2011 Exchange Offer, participating Preferreacitolders agreed to waive all unpaid dividendsiirears associated with their tendt
Preferred Stock, which resulted in a waiver of @ltef $3,539,714 in unpaid dividends in arreaBuring the quarter ended December
2011, we engaged in private sales with three RerleBtockholders which tendered a total of 30,5Mes of Preferred Stock. A total
$49,000 and 30,500 shares of Common Stock weredsas consideration to the three Preferred Stodkhal In accordance with the term
the private sales, the three Preferred Stockhollgrsed to waive all unpaid dividends in arreaspeisited with their tendered Preferred St
which resulted in a waiver of a total of $97,07%ipaid dividends in arrears.

Material Commitments for Expenditures

In 2011, we purchased molding machines to expandimhouse molding capability and further reduce codtgmancing wa
completed in the second quarter of 2011 for threédimg machines in the amount of $327,725. Theclpase and financing for a fou
molding machine for $207,261 was completed in theth quarter of 2011.

Trends in Capital Resources

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
None.
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
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The following chart summarizes our material obligas and commitments to make future payments ucaietracts for longerm dek
as of December 31, 2011:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less More
Than 1-3 35 Than 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Contractual Obligations Note
Long-term debt $ 4,767,51. % 624,24t $ 562,14¢$ 308,92t $ 3,272,19
Operating lease 244,78t 60,40: 124,41¢ 59,96¢ —
Total $ 5,012,29: $ 684,64" $ 686,56¢{ $ 368,89: $ 3,272,19

These amounts do not reflect the effect of the fi@akconversion feature of the note payable tdi&#&etroleum and, therefore, \
be greater than the amounts in the financial stegsn

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We consider the following to be our most significaccounting policies. Careful consideration aedigw is given to these and
accounting policies on a routine basis to ensuaettiey are accurately and consistently applied.

Accounts Receivable

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custon@us. allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that ardtfiduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistadd based on a percentage of receivables ouitstan@hese provisions are reviewel
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulsifgounts. Trade receivables are charged off vthere is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgieent when payment has not been made withinraohterms.

We require certain distributors to make a prepaymeior to beginning production or shipment of theider. Distributors may apg
such prepayments to their outstanding invoicesagrthe invoice and continue to carryforward thead#pfor future orders. Such amounts
included in Other accrued liabilities on the Bak®&heets and are shown in Note 6, Other Accruddlities.

We record an allowance for estimated returns asdaation to accounts receivable and gross saléstoritally, returns have be
immaterial.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and ofskwnership passes to the customer, generally ighdpment. Under cert:
contracts, revenue is recorded on the basis of salee to distributors, less contractual priciigwances. Contractual pricing allowan
consist of (i) rebates granted to distributors wirovide tracking reports which show, among othéngs, the facility that purchased
products, and (ii) a provision for estimated cociinal pricing allowances for products that we hawereceived tracking reports. Rebates
recorded when issued and are applied against tteroers receivable balance. Distributors receive a eeliat the difference between
Wholesale Acquisition Cost and the appropriate ramttprice as reflected on a tracking report predidhy the distributor to us. If produc
sold by a distributor to an entity that has no caxctt there is a standard rebate (lower than aa@ctedd rebate) given to the distributor. On
the purposes of the rebate is to encourage distribuo submit tracking reports to us. The provisfor contractual pricing allowances
reviewed at the end of each quarter and adjustedHanges in levels of products for which therengstracking report. Additionally, if
becomes clear that tracking reports will not bevigled by individual distributors, the provisionfigrther adjusted. The estimated contrac
allowance is netted against the individual distidiois accounts receivable balances for financial repppurposes. The resulting net balan
reflected in accounts receivable or
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accounts payable, as appropriate. The terms anditmms of contractual pricing allowances are gaee by contracts between us and
distributors. Revenue for shipments directly td-esers is recognized when title and risk of owngrgigisses from us. Any product shippe
distributed for evaluation purposes is expensed.

Certain distributors have taken rebates to whiely tire not entitled, such as utilizing a rebatepfaducts not purchased directly fr
us. We have been in discussions with the prinapatomers that claimed naoentractual rebates. Major customers said theg ltaased tt
practices resulting in claiming narontractual rebates. Rebates can only be claimgulichases made directly from us. We have eshegalis
reserve for the collectability of these noortractual rebate amounts. The expense for dexve is recorded in Operating expense, Gener:
administrative. The reserve for such non-conti@aeductions is a reduction of accounts receivable

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providdsat a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artied the distributoss facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipcd We will not accept returned goods withouetrned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theuarod

Our domestic return policy also generally provitlest a customer may return product that is ovekstdc Overstocking returns
limited to two times in each 12 month period upl®é of distributors total purchase of products for the prior 12 mguehiod. All produc
overstocks and returns are subject to inspectidreaneptance by us.

Our international distribution agreements do notve for any returns.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriwith cost being determined using actual average. We compare the aver
cost to the market price and record the lower valiManagement considers such factors as the anmafumyventory on hand and in t
distribution channel, estimated time to sell suntentory, the shelf life of inventory, and curremarket conditions when determining exces
obsolete inventories. A reserve is establishecigrexcess or obsolete inventories or they mayriieen off.

Marketing Fees

In prior periods, Marketing fees payable to Abbeére included in current liabilities in the BalanBheets. In connection with
settlement with Abbott, Marketing fees payable rded in previous periods will not have to be paidhe reversal of this accrual is include
Litigation settlements, net on the Statements aér@jpons in 2010.

Recent Pronouncement

In June 2011, FASB issued Accounting Standards tépdASU”) No. 2011-05Presentation of Comprehensive Income. FASB ASL
No. 201:-05 amends existing guidance by allowing two optifmspresenting the components of net income ahdratomprehensive incon
(1) in a single continuous financial statementtaesnent of income and other comprehensive incom@)oin two separate but consecu
financial statements, consisting of an income stat# followed by a separate statement of other cehgmsive income. Also, items that
reclassified from other comprehensive income toinebme must be presented on the face of the finhstatements. ASU No. 2000E
requires retrospective application, and it is @ffecfor fiscal years, and interim periods withimose years, beginning after December 15, :
with early adoption permitted. We do not expeet dldoption of this standard to have an impact arfinancial position, results of operatio
or cash flows.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

We believe that our market risk exposures regardingcash and cash equivalents are immaterial adongot have instruments
trading purposes. We shifted the bulk of our fuite U.S. Treasury bills and other U.S. governmieatked securities in April 200
Additionally, reasonable, possible near-term charigenarket rates or prices will not result in mitlechanges in near-term earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Retractable Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeRewctable Technologies, Inc. as of December 8112and 2010, and the rela
statements of operations, changes in stockhol@eypsity, and cash flows for each of the three yaathe period ended December 31, 2(
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale of Retractable Technologies, Inc., listettém 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilafithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresgpamon on these financ
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighalaUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finast@ééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform an audit of itsrivél control over financial reportin
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigraidit procedures that are appropriate il
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsaiyternal control over financial reportir
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aumitudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by meamnagt, as well as evaluating the ove
financial statement presentation. We believe thiataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respect® financial position of Retractal
Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and ,28id the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with U.Snegelly accepted accounting principles. Also, ur @pinion, the related financ
statement schedule, when considered in relatidheadasic financial statements taken as a whotsents fairly in all material respects
information set forth therein.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 30, 201:
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2011 2010
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 25,673,26 $ 23,266,03
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubgfetounts of $2,078,944 and $780,900, respect 3,576,41 7,582,06:
Inventories, ne 6,237,41! 8,682,19:
Income taxes receivab 39,48! 12,031
Other current assets 218,52¢ 681,24«
Total current assets 35,745,10 40,223,56
Property, plant, and equipment, | 12,653,85 12,560,59
Intangible and other assets, net 362,97t 406,91(
Total assets $ 48,76193 $ 53,191,06
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 3,500,30. $ 3,847,96!
Current portion of lon-term debit 620,47 519,61:
Accrued compensatic 628,79: 603,48
Accrued royalties to shareholde 122,23¢ 949,61¢
Other accrued liabilitie 1,065,94: 3,910,42i
Income taxes payable 29,47: 155,00(
Total current liabilities 5,967,221 9,986,10i
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 4,143,26' 4,304,46(
Total liabilities 10,110,48 14,290,56:
Commitments and contingenci— See Note ¢
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred Stock $1 par valt
Class B; authorized: 5,000,000 she
Series |, Class B; outstanding: 103,500 and 144sb@@es, respectively (liquidation preference cfé875 and
$900,000 respectivel 103,50( 144,00(
Series I, Class B; outstanding: 178,700 and 218, spectively (liquidation preference of $2,2%8,and $2,746,250,
respectively’ 178,70( 219,70(
Series lll, Class B; outstanding: 130,245 and 18B ghares, respectively (liquidation preferenc$Xg628,063 and
$1,628,063, respectivel 130,24! 130,24*
Series IV, Class B; outstanding: 542,500 and 552 &tares (liquidation preference of $5,967,500%6677,500,
respectively’ 542,50( 552,50(
Series V, Class B; outstanding: 46,607 and 1,238sB2res, respectively (liquidation preference2f3071 and
$5,423,312, respectivel 46,60" 1,232,57.
Common Stock, no par value; authorized: 100,00090@0es; issued and outstanding: 25,318,700 a®d¥4£3,14 shares,
respectively — —
Additional paic-in capital 57,284,67 57,674,73
Retained deficit (19,634,77) (21,053,25)
Total stockholders’ equity 38,651,45 38,900,50
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 48,761,93 $ 53,191,06'

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Sales, ne $ 32,10229 $ 36,21956 $  38,981,83
Cost of Sale:
Costs of manufactured prodt 18,556,25 20,757,48 22,659,43
Royalty expense to shareholders 2,643,20! 2,940,94 2,806,22.
Total cost of sale 21,199,46 23,698,43 25,465,66
Gross profit 10,902,83 12,521,12 13,516,17
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 3,439,53! 3,674,16: 4,372,16:
Research and developms 815,01¢ 885,44! 1,030,62.
General and administratiy 10,738,11 14,260,15 18,814,39
Impairment of asse’ — 365,29! 2,594,60.
Total operating expenses 14,992,66 19,185,05 26,811,77
Loss from operation (4,089,83) (6,663,93) (13,295,60)
Interest and other incon 62,59¢ 32,32« 57,60«
Interest expense, n (240,489 (302,84)) (21,897)
Litigation settlements, net 5,700,00!I 9,159,08! —
Income (loss) before income tax 1,432,27! 2,224,63 (13,259,89)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 13,79% (176,05) (3,837,59)
Net income (loss 1,418,48: 2,400,69: (9,422,301
Preferred Stock dividend requirements (964,04) (1,370,620 (1,370,86)
Earnings (loss) applicable to common sharehol $ 454,43t $ 1,030,07 $ (10,793,16)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢ $ (0.4
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢ $ (0.45)
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic 24,171,23 23,872,78 23,806,53
Diluted 26,354,78 26,248,87. 23,806,53

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance as of
December 31, 200 144,000 $ 144,00(

Recognition of stock
option compensatio — —

Recognition of stock
option exercist — —

Royalty waiver — —

Net loss — —

Balance as of
December 31, 200 144,00( 144,00(

Conversion of Preferred
Stock into Common
Stock — —

Recognition of stock
option compensatio — —

Recognition of stock
option exercist — —

Payment of dividend — —

Net income — —

Balance as of

December 31, 201 144,00( 144,00(
Exchange of Preferred

Stock for Common

Stock (40,500 (40,500

Purchase of Preferred
Stock — —

Recognition of stock
option exercist — —

Payment of dividend — —

Net income — —

Balance as of

Series | Class E Series |l Class B Series Il Class B Series IV Class B Series V Class E Common
Amount Amount
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Shares Shares Amount Shares Amount
219,700 $ 219,70( 130,24 $ 130,24! 552,500 $ 552,50( 1,238,82. $1,238,82 23,800,06 —
— — — — — — — — 25,08t —
219,70( 219,70( 130,24! 130,24¢ 552,50( 552,50( 1,238,82 1,238,82 23,825,14 —
— _ — — — — (6,250 (6,250 6,25( —
— — — — — — — — 142,71¢ —
219,70( 219,70( 130,24! 130,24¢ 552,50( 552,50( 1,232,57 1,232,57 23,974,11 —
(41,000 (41,000 — — (10,000 (10,000 (1,185,96) (1,185,96) 1,277,46 —
— — — — — — — — 67,12: —
178,70 $ 178,70( 130,24 $ 130,24t 542,500 $ 542,50( 46,607 $ 46,60 25,318,700 $ —

December 31, 201 103,50( $ 103,50(

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Additional Retained
Paid-in Earnings
Capital (Deficit) Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 53,952,18 $ (14,031,64) $  42,205,80
Recognition of stock option compensat 2,111,36! — 2,111,36!
Recognition of stock option exerci 25,61( — 25,61(
Royalty waiver 1,000,001 — 1,000,001
Net loss — (9,422,300 (9,422,301
Balance as of December 31, 2( 57,089,15. (23,453,94) 35,920,47
Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St 6,25( — —
Recognition of stock option compensat 1,340,301 — 1,340,30!
Recognition of stock option exerci 115,60( — 115,60(
Payment of dividend (876,56¢) — (876,56¢)
Net income — 2,400,69 2,400,609
Balance as of December 31, 2( 57,674,73 (21,053,25) 38,900,50
Exchange of Preferred Stock for Common St 1,277,46: — —
Purchase of Preferred Sto (1,357,27) — (1,357,27)
Recognition of stock option exerci 54,36¢ — 54,36¢
Payment of dividend (364,629 — (364,629
Net income — 1,418,48. 1,418,48.
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 57,284,677 $ (19,634,77) $  38,651,45

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mshcprovided by (used by) operat

activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Litigation settlemen- marketing fees payab
Stock option compensatic
Provision for inventory valuatio
Reserve for nc-contractual deductior
Provision for doubtful accoun
Impairment of asse’
Accreted interes
(Increase) decrease in ass
Inventories
Accounts receivabl
Income taxes receivab
Other current asse
Increase (decrease) in liabilitie
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities, othe
Income taxes payab

Net cash provided (used) by operating activi

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant, and equipn

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of lor-term debt and notes payal
Repurchase of Preferred Stc
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Payment of Preferred Stock divider

Net cash used by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of perioc

End of perioc

Supplemental schedule of cash flow informati
Interest paic
Income taxes pai

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities:

Debt assumed to construct a warehc
Forgiveness of royalties by sharehol

Debt assumed for the purchase of molding mact

Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

$ 1,418,448 $ 2,400,69: $ (9,422,30)

1,311,74 1,516,221  1,396,79.

—  (1,419,76) —

— 1,340,300  2,111,36
52,83

850,00( —

1,298,04 133,99( 182,00(
— 365,29! 2,594,60:
17,61( 30,92( 43,15:

2,391,903  (1,774,82)  (265,83)
2,707,60  1,382,15/  (6,841,26)
(27,459 3,643,601  (3,655,63)
462,71 (56,85) (224,280

(347,66)  (3,149,34) 852,87
(3,646,55) 3,313,261  1,015,50!
(125,529 155,00( (86,695)

5,513,77. 8,730,67: (12,299,73)

(826,09)  (169,41) (2,383,86)

(826,09)  (169,41) (2,383,86)

(612,92) (2,660,33) (499,66
(1,357,27) — —
54,36¢ 115,60( 25,61(
(364,62) (876,560 —

(2,280,45)  (3,421,30) (474,059

2,407,22. 5,139,95! (15,157,65)

23,266,038  18,126,08  33,283,74
$ 25,673,26 $ 23,266,03 $ 18,126,08

$ 279,690 $ 321,61( $ 184,01t
$ 188,75 $ 16,00 $ —
$ — $ — $ 1,362,60:
$ — $ — $ 1,000,00t
$ 534,98t $ — $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

2.

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business of the Company

Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Compamygs incorporated in Texas on May 9, 1994, and dasidevelops, manufactures,
markets safety syringes and other safety medicatiymts for the healthcare profession. The Comphbegan to develop

manufacturing operations in 1995. The Companyanufacturing and administrative facilities aveated in Little EIm, Texas. T
Company’s primary products with Notice of Substalnfquivalence to the FDA are the VanishP&in0.5mL insulin syringe; 1m
tuberculin, insulin, and allergy antigen syringde 0.5mL, 2mL, 3mL, 5mL, and 10mL syringes; theardiameter tube adapter; -
blood collection tube holder; the allergy tray; thesafety catheter; the Patient S&fe syringe;thedPatient Safé  Luer Cap.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl*GAAP”) requires Manageme
to make estimates and assumptions that affecteperted amounts of assets and liabilities and alsce of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemestsl the reported amounts of revenues and expeosieg the reporting period. Actt
results could differ significantly from those estites.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egsivalents include unrestricted cash, money ma&eounts, and investments v
original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts receivable

The Company records trade receivables when revenvecognized. No product has been consigned stomers. The Comparsyy’
allowance for doubtful accounts is primarily detered by review of specific trade receivables. Thescounts that are doubtful
collection are included in the allowance. An adial allowance has been established based orcargage of receivables outstandi
These provisions are reviewed to determine thewaisgof the allowance for doubtful accounts. Tresteivables are charged off wi
there is certainty as to their being uncollectibleade receivables are considered delinquent vgagment has not been made wi
contract terms.

The Company requires certain distributors to makeegpayment prior to beginning production or shiptnaf their order. Distributo
may apply such prepayments to their outstandingig@s or pay the invoice and continue to carryfadataie deposit for future ordel
Such amounts are included in Other accrued ligslibn the Balance Sheets and are shown in Na¢h@r Accrued Liabilities.

The Company records an allowance for estimatednetas a reduction to Accounts receivable and Gales. Historically, returns he
been immaterial.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriwith cost being determined using actual aveagt. The Company compares
average cost to the market price and records therlgalue. Management considers such factorseaarttount of inventory on hand ¢
in the distribution channel, estimated time to selth inventory, the shelf life of inventory, andrrent market conditions wh
determining excess or
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obsolete inventories. A reserve is establisheciffigrexcess or obsolete inventories or they mayriten off.
Property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at d&spenditures for maintenance and repairs are elatg operations as incurred. C
includes major expenditures for improvements armglaements which extend useful lives or increaggaciéy and interest cc
associated with significant capital additions. Hwr years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and @@ ompany capitalized inter
of approximately $57,000; $50,000; and $205,00@in&or losses from property disposals are includdacome.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated ugiegstraight-line method over the following usdiugs:

Production equipmet 3to 13 year
Office furniture and equipmel 3to 10 year
Buildings 39 years
Building improvement: 15 years
Automobiles 7 years

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of liwegh assets using an assessment of the estimatiscounted future cash flows rele
to such assets. In the event that assets are toube carried at amounts which are in excess tohated gross future cash flows,
assets will be adjusted for impairment to a lewshmensurate with a discounted cash flow analysikefinderlying assets.

During 2009, the Company recognized an impairmématrge of $2,594,602 associated with its cathetedymtion equipment. TI
Company determined it was more cost effective tisauwrce the majority of this production through meéas manufacturers, and thus
Companys catheter production equipment will be utilizedsle Minimal cash flows are expected to be gendrhyethis equipmen
Accordingly, the Company reduced the carrying vabfighe catheter production equipment to an estchdair value of zero. TI
Company’s management estimated the fair value eftiuipment based on guidance established birahieValue Measurements and
Disclosures Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards BodFASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”)n this instanct
the Companys management determined the impairment charge itiging observable market data, a Level 2 input emthe FASI
ASC. A Level 1 input would require quoted pricesich were not available in this matter.

During 2010, the Company recognized impairment gésrof $365,295 on equipment designed in connectiith research ar
development activities. The Company will outsoutibe majority of this production through overseaanofacturers. Minimal ca
flows, if any, are expected to be generated byetispment. Accordingly, the Company reduced #reying value of this equipment
an estimated fair value of zero. The Companyanagement estimated the fair value of the eqerpimased on guidance establishe
the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC. In this instance, the Compa management determined
impairment charge by utilizing observable marketada Level 2 input under the FASB ASC. A Levehput would require quott
prices, which were not available in this matter.

The Companys remaining property, plant, and equipment prilgariinsists of buildings, land, assembly equipmensfringes, moldin
machines, molds, office equipment, furniture, atufes. There has been no impairment charge ag#ir assembly equipment si
the Company continues to manufacture a signifipantion of 1mL and 3cc syringes at the Comparbittle EIm facility which results i
sufficient future cash flows to recoup the net beakue of all property, plant, and equipment.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiehform with the current year’'s presentation.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and consistaply of patents, a license agreement grantinglustve rights to use paten
technology, and trademarks which are amortizedgutsia straight-line method over 17 years.

Financial instruments

The Company estimates the fair market value ofnfifel instruments through the use of public magkétes, quotes from financ
institutions, and other available information. domént is required in interpreting data to develgingates of market value a
accordingly, amounts are not necessarily indicatifehe amounts that could be realized in a curreatket exchange. Shddrr
financial instruments, including cash and cash\ejants, accounts receivable, accounts payableptrat liabilities, consist primari
of instruments without extended maturities, the ¥aiue of which, based on Management’s estimatgsals their recorded values.

Concentration risks

The Companys financial instruments exposed to concentratidhsredit risk consist primarily of cash, cash eglénts, and accout
receivable. Cash balances, some of which excetmdly insured limits, are maintained in finandiadtitutions; however, Managem
believes the institutions are of high credit qualitThe majority of accounts receivable are duemfroompanies which are well-
established entities. As a consequence, Manageawesiders any exposure from concentrations oficrésks to be limited. Tt
Company had a high concentration of sales withg#itant customers. For the year ended DecembgeR@B11, the aforementior
customers accounted for $16.2 million, or 50.6%effsales.

Considering the current economic climate, the Cargpacreased its allowance for doubtful accountapgroximately $1.3 million th
year.

The Company manufactures syringes in Little Elmxaleas well as utilizing manufacturers in Chinde Tompany purchases mos
its product components from single suppliers, idizlg needle adhesives and packaging materialsreTdre multiple sources of th
materials. The Company obtained roughly 67.1%finished products in 2011 through Double Dov€hinese manufacturer. In-
event that the Company becomes unable to purchade moduct from Double Dove, the Company woulddnge find an alterna
supplier for its 0.5mL insulin syringe, its 5mL af@mL syringes, and its autodisable syringe ancege domestic production for 1
and 3mL syringes to avoid a disruption in supply.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and ofslownership passes to the customer, generallyn igiopment. Under certe
contracts, revenue is recorded on the basis of galiee to distributors, less contractual pricintpweances. Contractual prici
allowances consist of: (i) rebates granted to ithistors who provide tracking reports which show,oagn other things, the facility tr
purchased the products, and (ii) a provision feinesgted contractual pricing allowances for produbist the Company has not recei
tracking reports. Rebates are recorded when isanddare applied against the custommegceivable balance. Distributors recei
rebate for the difference between the Wholesaleuisitipn Cost and the appropriate contract pricaedlected on a tracking rep
provided by the distributor to the Company. If puotis sold by a distributor to an entity that Im@scontract, there is a standard re
(lower than a contracted rebate) given to the itistor. One of the purposes of the rebate is tmarage distributors to submit track
reports to the Company. The provision for contratcpricing allowances is reviewed at the end oheguarter and adjusted for char
in levels of products for which there is no trackieport. Additionally, if it becomes clear thatdking reports will not be provided
individual distributors, the provision is furthedjasted. The estimated contractual allowance fedegainst the individual distributer’
accounts receivable balances for financial repgrporposes. The resulting net balance is reflestemtcounts receivable or accot
payable, as appropriate. The terms and conditdeentractual pricing allowances are governed diytiacts between the Company
its distributors. Revenue for shipments direatlyehd-users
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is recognized when title and risk of ownership plasm the Company. Any product shipped or distiéloifor evaluation purposes
expensed.

Certain distributors have taken rebates to whidy tre not entitled, such as utilizing a rebatepimducts not purchased directly fr
the Company. The Company has been in discussiithghe principal customers that claimed nmmtractual rebates. Major custon
said they have ceased the practices resultinqaimglg noneontractual rebates. Rebates can only be claimgrichases made direc
from the Company. The Company has establishedeavedor the collectability of these n@ontractual rebate amounts. The exp
for the reserve is recorded in Operating expensmeéal and administrative. The reserve for suah-ammtractual deductions is
reduction of accounts receivable.

The Companys domestic return policy is set forth in its standdBistribution Agreement. This policy providesatra customer mi
return incorrect shipments within 10 days followiagival at the distributos facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain a
authorization code from the Company and affix tbdecto the returned product. The Company willamtept returned goods withot
returned goods authorization number. The Compaaty mefund the customer’s money or replace the priodu

The Companys domestic return policy also generally providest th customer may return product that is overstbck@verstockin
returns are limited to two times in each 12-monghiqu up to 1% of distributor’s total purchase wobducts for the prior 12aontf
period. All product overstocks and returns argexttio inspection and acceptance by the Company.

The Company’s international distribution agreemeiatsiot provide for any returns.
Marketing fees

In prior periods, Marketing fees payable to Abdatboratories (“Abbott")were included in current liabilities in the Balar8heets. |
connection with the settlement with Abbott, Marketifees payable recorded in previous periods weterequired to be paid. T
reversal of this accrual is included in Litigatisattiements, net on the Statements of OperatioB8160.

Litigation settlements

Proceeds from litigation settlements are recognizkdn realizable. Generally, realization is n@senably assured and expected
proceeds are collected. Pursuant to a settlenggeément among the Company, Abbott, and Hospita,(Thlospira”),Hospira delivere
$6 million to the Company in the third quarter &1B. The Company reduced its litigation settleradnt $144,000 attributable to
unpaid Abbott invoice. Abbott also waived its tigho any Series IV Class B Preferred Stock divitdenAdditionally, the Compal
granted Hospira an exclusive one-year option tootieg a licensing agreement for certain uses efRhatient Saf@ syringe, whicl
option expired unexercised in July 2011. The Camphas received the $8.0 million option paymentie TCompany recogniz
proceeds from litigation settlements, net of argoagmted royalty expense.

Income taxes

The Company evaluates tax positions taken or eggetct be taken in a tax return for recognitionhe financial statements basec
whether it is “more-likely-than-notthat a tax position will be sustained based uperntéichnical merits of the position. Measureme
the tax position is based upon the largest amaoiuoeioefit that is greater than 50% likely of beneglized upon ultimate settlement.

The Company provides for deferred income taxesutiinautilizing an asset and liability approach fimahcial accounting and report
based on the tax effects of differences betweerfittacial statement and tax bases of assets abdities, based on enacted r:
expected to be in effect when such differencesrsevim future periods. Deferred tax assets ardieally reviewed for realizability
Under recent tax law changes, companies are alldavearry back taxable losses from either 2008040. The Company filed for a1
refund utilizing its 2009 taxable losses which tegliin a $4.0 million refund
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received in the third quarter of 2010. The Compatiized some of its net operating carry forwaids2011 and paid Alternati
Minimum Tax on its taxable income. The Company ésisblished a valuation allowance for its net etetax asset as future taxe
income cannot be reasonably assured. Penaltiemtandst on uncertain tax positions are classifisihcome taxes in the Statemen
Operations.

Earnings per share

The Company computes basic earnings per share (JERSIividing net earnings for the period (adjusteddny cumulative dividen
for the period) by the weighted average humberoofirmon shares outstanding during the period. DilEES includes the determine
of basic EPS and, in addition, reflects the dilataffect, if any, of the common stock deliverablespant to stock options or comn
stock issuable upon the conversion of convertibkfgored stock and convertible debt. The poterikition, if any, is shown on tl
following schedule.

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net income (loss $ 1,418,48. $ 2,400,69: $ (9,422,30i)
Preferred dividend requiremer (964,04 (1,370,620 (1,370,86)
Effect of dilutive securities
Convertible debt interest and loan ft (10,120 — —
Earnings (loss) available to common shareholddes asumed

conversions $ 444 31" $ 1,030,07- $ (10,793,16)
Average common shares outstanc 24,171,23 23,872,78 23,806,53
Dilutive stock equivalents from stock optic 2,101,82! 2,376,09: —
Shares issuable upon conversion of convertible 81,72: — —
Average common and common equivalent shares odiatan assuming

dilution 26,354,78 26,248,87. 23,806,53
Basic earnings per share $ 00z % 0.04 $ (0.4%)
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.0z $ 0.04 $ (0.45)

Shipping and handling costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling castsart of Cost of sales in the Statements of Gipesa
Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed asthcu

Share-based compensation

The Company’s share-based payments are accountesifg the fair value method. The Company recslizebased compensati
expense on a straight-line basis over the requssiteice period. The Company incurred the follayéhare-based compensation costs:
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3.

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Cost of sale: $ —$ 182,89. $ 317,64«
Sales and marketir — 78,34 242,50¢
Research and developmt — 28,25¢ 47,16¢
General and administrative — 1,050,801 1,504,03!
$ — $ 1,340,301 $ 2,111,36!

Options awarded to employees in 2009 were amortized twelve months. The Company expensed fivethsoof expense for optio
issued in 2009. Non-employee Directors’ optionenge was all expensed in the third quarter of 2009.

All stock options were fully vested at June 30, @0therefore, all stock option expense was fuljognized at June 30, 2010.

Recent Pronouncement

In June 2011, FASB issued Accounting Standards tép@fASU”) No. 2011-05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income . FASB ASL
No. 201105 amends existing guidance by allowing two optiforspresenting the components of net income ahdrotomprehensi
income: (1) in a single continuous financial stagetn a statement of income and other comprehemsdaene or (2) in two separate
consecutive financial statements, consisting ofn@ome statement followed by a separate statenfeother comprehensive incon
Also, items that are reclassified from other corhpresive income to net income must be presentedhenface of the financi
statements. ASU No. 20105 requires retrospective application, and it feafve for fiscal years, and interim periods withthos:
years, beginning after December 15, 2011, withyezdbption permitted. The Company does not exipecadoption of this standarc
have an impact on the Company’s financial positiesults of operations, or cash flows.

INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010
Raw materials $ 128235 % 1,401,93
Finished good 5,213,49 7,485,86.
6,495,85. 8,887,79.
Inventory reserv (258,43) (205,600
$ 6,237,41! $ 8,682,19
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant, and equipment consist of the fuoitg:

December 31

2011 2010
Land $ 261,89 $ 261,89:
Buildings and building improvemen 11,121,55 11,093,79
Production equipmer 15,550,22 14,808,05
Office furniture and equipme! 2,341,74 2,260,21!
Construction in progres 995,81( 486,18’
Automobiles 102,32: 102,32:

30,373,54 29,012,47
Accumulated depreciation (17,719,69) (16,451,88)

$ 1265385 $ 12,560,59

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decemb&@031, 2010, and 2009 was $1,267,813; $1,482#&891 $1,353,353, respectively.
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31

2011 2010
License agreeme! $ 500,00 $ 500,00(
Trademarks and patents 508,74 508,74

1,008,74. 1,008,74.
Accumulated amortization (678,619 (625,50)

$ 330,12¢ $ 383,23¢

In 1995, the Company entered into a license agreemih the Chief Executive Officer of the Compafor the exclusive right 1
manufacture, market, and distribute products inigjizautomated retraction technology. This liceageeement was amended Jul
2008 to include certain additional patent applmagi owned by such officer in the definition of “&att Properties$o that such additior
patent applications would be covered by the licenBais technology is the subject of various pateard patent applications ownec
such officer of the Company. The initial licensiieg of $500,000 is being amortized over 17 yedi license agreement also prov
for quarterly payments of a 5% royalty fee on greakes. The royalty fee expense is recognizedhénperiod in which it is earne
Royalty fees of $2,643,209; $2,940,948; and $2B® are included in Cost of sales for the yearsdrdecember 31, 2011, 2010,
2009, respectively. Royalties payable under thlise@ment aggregated $122,939 and $949,619 at Dec&hp 2011 and 201
respectively. Gross sales upon which royaltiesbased were $52,864,158; $58,795,279; and $56,324¢f 2011, 2010, and 20!
respectively. Royalties were also paid on litigatproceeds, net of legal fees, on a gross amd@#.4 million in 2010 and $6.0 millic
in 2011. A small amount of royalties was paid oyaities from a licensing agreement with a thirdya

In the third quarter of 2009, the Company annoursmgeral cost cutting and cash saving initiativesdnserve its cash. As a par
those initiatives, the Chief Executive Officer wadlv payment to him of $1,000,000 in royalty feesherEfore, the royalty fees
$2,806,223 for 2009 resulted in a cash outlay ¢8@4,223.

Amortization expense for the years ended Decembe?@®11, 2010, and 2009, was $43,934; $43,440$48¢140, respectively. Futt
amortization expense for the years 2012 througtt 20&stimated to be $43,933 per year.
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6. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Other accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31

2011 2010
Prepayments from customers $ 869,33 $ 3,555,272
Accrued professional fet 134,79( 288,942
Other accrued expenses 61,81¢ 66,214
$ 1,065,94. $ 3,910,42¢

The decrease in prepayments is attributable priyn@ripurchases by South American customers.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the followin

Loan from Lewisville State Bank, a division oftlinternational Bank. It has a 20 year amortizato
10 year maturity from December 10, 2009. The loanvigded funding for the expansion of
warehouse, additional office space, and a new Gbedr Environment. The loan is secured by
Compan’s land and buildings. The interest rate is 5.9€

Note payable to Katie Petroleum. Interest accragsime plus 1%, which was 4.25% at Decembe
2011 and 2010. Interest only was payable monthiyutph February 1, 2004. The original amour
the note of $3,000,000 was discounted for presentaurposes by $299,346 for stock options is
in conjunction with the debt and $412,500 for thiginsic value of a beneficial conversion featuf
the debt. Beginning March 1, 2004, the loan has lgag/able in equal installments of principal
interest (except for changes in the interest raik)approximately $37,000 and matures
September 30, 2012. Guaranteed by an officer. Apprately $163,736 of the principal paym
was converted into 40,934 shares of Common Stockofasvlarch 1, 2006. Not otherwi
collateralized. Convertible into Common Stock at0®4per share at the option of the holc

Note payable to Deutsche Leasing USA, Inc. Tha@sterate is 5.57%. The original amount of the
was $327,726 with a 36 month maturity ending in ikp@14. Beginning May 2011, the loan
payable in equal installments of principal and ries¢ of approximately $9,900. Collateralized
three molding machines. It has a purchase opti®#1df0 at the end of the ter

Note payable to Deutsche Leasing USA, Inc. Thedsterate is 5.57%. The original amount of the
was $207,260 with a 36 month maturity ending in &taber 2014. Beginning December 2011,

loan is payable in equal installments of princigadl interest of approximately $6,300. Collateral
by a molding machine. It has a purchase optiornldhat the end of the ter

Less: current portio
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2011 2010

$ 3,979,12. $ 4,098,57

323,11¢ 725,49

259,54 —

201,95¢ —
4,763,73! 4,824,07.

(620,47) (519,61)
$ 4,143,226 $ 4,304,46
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The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as afdbéer 31, 2011, are as follows:

2012 $ 620,47
2013 315,08t
2014 247,06:
2015 149,74
2016 159,18:
Thereaftel 3,272,19.

$ 4,763,73

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In June 2010, Becton, Dickinson and Company (“Bii&d an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appeals (t@®trt”) for the Federal Circt
appealing a final judgment entered on May 19, 2fathe Company and against BDtounterclaims in patent litigation. Such f
judgment ordered that the Company recover $5,000008s prejudgment interest, and ordered a permangmction for BD's 1mL an
3mL Integra syringes until the expiration of cemtpatents. The permanent injunction was stayethftonger of the exhaustion of
appeal of the district court’'s case or twelve menftom May 19, 2010. In July 2011, a thijadge panel of the Court reversed
district court’s judgment that BD’s 3mL Integraiimiged the Company’s ‘224 patent ar@¥7 patent. The Court affirmed the dis!
court’s judgment that the 1mL Integra infringes empany’s ‘244 and ‘733 patents. The Court alfonzed the district courg
judgment that thed77 patent is not invalid for anticipation or obwsmess. Out of eight principal issues that wergested in the appe
the Company and an officer prevailed on six and@évailed on two. The Company had petitioned foeteearing by all the judges
the Federal Circuit as to whether the three-judgeep properly construed the Compapatent claim language in finding that the {
Integra did not infringe. The Compasypetition for rehearing by all of the judges oé thederal Circuit was denied with two diss
being issued. The Company filed a petition forioeati asking the Supreme Court to review the matféhat petition should be accer
or rejected by October 2012.

In May 2010, the Company and an officesuit against BD in the U.S. District Court foethastern District of Texas, Marshall Divis
alleging violations of antitrust acts, false adigéng, product disparagement, tortious interferemeel unfair competition was reopen
The Company and an officer filed a Second Amendech@aint on July 23, 2010 setting forth additiodatail regarding the allegatic
of BD's illegal conduct. BD filed a motion to dismissdatihe Court denied that motion in part and grarited part, granting th
Company the right to rplead certain allegations by May 13, 2011. The gamy and an officer filed a Third Amended Complan
May 2011, setting forth additional detail regardthg alleged illegal conduct by BD. Trial wasiliy set for February 2012. Howev
in January 2012 the parties agreed to a continueme#ow the petition for certiorari to be congieé. As a result of retirement, a r
judge will be assigned. It is currently believédtttrial will proceed in the fall of 2012.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdihgs, (“MDC”) sued the Company in the United States District Céur the
Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Division,ially alleging that the Company is infringing twa&J patents of MDC (6,179,812 ¢
7,090,656) that are licensed to BD. BD and MDC sielinctive relief and unspecified damages. Then@any counterclaimed f{
declarations of nomfringement, invalidity, and unenforceability dfet asserted patents. The plaintiffs subsequentiypetd allegatior
with regard to patent no. 7,090,656 and the Comgabgequently dropped its counterclaims for uneefability of the asserted pater
The Court conducted a claims construction hearimgSeptember 25, 2008 and issued its claims corgtnuorder on November 1
2008. There is currently no trial date set fos ttdise. The Company has filed a motion for sumijuaiyment that is now pending.

Operating Leases
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During 2010, the Company entered into a ancellable operating lease for additional offipace. Rent expense under this lease
$59,195 in 2011. Future annual minimum rental payts as of December 31, 2011 are presented below:

2012 $ 60,40:
2013 61,60"
2014 62,81:
2015 59,96¢
Thereafter —

Total $ 244,78t

9. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consists of thedfelhg:

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Current tax provision (benefi
Federa $ (29,070 $ (204,50) $ (3,655,63)
State 42,867 28,45( (181,95)
Total current provision (benefit) 13,79 (176,05) (3,837,59))
Deferred tax provision (benefi
Federa — — —
State — — —
Total deferred tax provision (benefit) — — —
Total income tax provision (benefit) $ 13,797 $ (176,05 $  (3,837,59)

The Company recognized a tax benefit in 2009 piilgndue to net operating losses incurred in 2009.

The Company recognized a net tax benefit due tadalitional refund for net operating losses in 26@8gated by Alternative Minimui
Tax in 2010.

The Company has $8,893,855 in tax benefits attlflatto carryback losses for federal tax purpoSée loss carryforwards will be¢
to expire in 2027 for federal tax purposes and belyin to expire for state tax purposes in 2012.

Deferred taxes are provided for those items refdrtalifferent periods for income tax and finanaigporting purposes. The tax effe
of temporary differences that give rise to sigmifit portions of the deferred tax assets and ltgslare presented below:

December 31

2011 2010
Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 3,372,99. $ 4,228,82
Accrued expenses and reser 1,118,67 907,62
Employee stock option expen 682,81( 682,81(
Inventory 397,44¢ 385,85¢
Non-employee stock option exper 79,93¢ 81,31(
Charitable contribution carryforwards — 26,16¢
Deferred tax asse 5,651,87. 6,312,59
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Property and equipme (768,459 (869,909
Deferred tax liabilities (768,459 (869,909
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2011 2010
Net deferred assets 4,883,411 5,442 ,68.
Valuation allowanct (4,883,41) (5,442,68)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ — $ —

A reconciliation of income taxes based on the fabgtatutory rate and the provision (benefit) ftxdme taxes is summarized as follo

December 31

2011 2010 2009

Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory rate 35.(% 35.(% (35.0%
State tax (benefit), net of federal (bene 2.9 2.¢ (2.9
Increase in valuation allowan — — 4.€
Permanent difference 2.C 9.1 3.C
Return to accrual adjustmer (2.9 (15.0 (0.3
Alternative minimum ta 34 5.8 —
Release of valuation allowan- Net operating loss carryforwa (39.0 (45.2) —
Other (0.5 (0.5) 1.€

Effective tax (benefit) rat 1.C% (7.9% (29.0%

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and in various state and locaisdictions. The Companyfedere
income tax returns for all tax years ended on tarddecember 31, 2008, remain subject to examindtjothe Internal Revenue Servi
The Companys state and local income tax returns are subjeekémnination by the respective state and localaaitiss over variot
statutes of limitations, most ranging from thredive years from the date of filing.

10. EXCHANGE OF PREFERRED STOCK FOR COMMON STOCK AND CA SH

11.

On September 12, 2011, the Company commenced antofpurchase all outstanding Class B Stock feh@nd Common Stock (1
2011 Exchange Offer). As of November 4, 2011, dkpiration date of the 2011 Exchange Offer, Preféi8tockholders had tende
the following number of shares of Preferred Stdgk27,500 shares of Series | Class B Stock; 2)0f0lshares of Series Il Class B St¢
3) no shares of Series Ill Class B Stock were exgéd; 4) 5,000 shares of Series IV Class B Stoo#t;5 1,173,464 shares of Serie
Class B Stock. A total of $1,308,275 and 1,246,964dres of Common Stock were issued as considerttigarticipating Preferr
Stockholders pursuant to the 2011 Exchange Offieraccordance with the terms of the 2011 ExchanffjerOparticipating Preferre
Stockholders agreed to waive all unpaid dividemdarrears associated with their tendered Prefe3tedk, which resulted in a waiver
a total of $3,539,714 in unpaid dividends in arsear

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thepaosnengaged in private sales with three Prefeédtedkholders which tendered
following number of shares of Preferred Stock: 3)0D0 shares of Series | Class B Stock; 2) 5,0@€eshof Series IV Class B Stock; .
3) 12,500 shares of Series V Class B Stock. A tft$49,000 and 30,500 shares of Common Stock vesteed as consideration to
three Preferred Stockholders. In accordance wighterms of the private sales, the three Prefestedkholders agreed to waive
unpaid dividends in arrears associated with treridéred Preferred Stock, which resulted in a wabfea total of $97,079 in unpe
dividends in arrears.

The 2011 Exchange Offer and private sales are suinedan the table below.

Number of Preferred Cash Outlay Number of Accrued Amount of
Stock Shares by Company Common Stock Dividends Annual
Tendered by Shares Tendered Eliminated Dividend
Preferred by Company Reduction
Stockholders
Series | Class B Stocl 40,50C $ 60,75C 40,50C $ — $ 20,250
Series Il Class B Stocl 41,00C 123,00 41,00C — 41,000
Series IV Class B Stocl 10,00C 35,00C 10,00C 114,57¢ 10,000
Series V Class B Stocl 1,185,96¢ 1,138,52¢ 1,185,96¢ 3,478,08¢ 379,508
Total Class B Stock 1,277,464 $ 1,357,227 1,277,464 $3,592,65¢ $450,75¢

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 5,000,000 shafréreferred Stock Class A with a par value of @wilar ($1.00) per shat
5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock Class B whravalue of One Dollar ($1.00) per share; and @0 shares of Preferred St
Class C with a par value of One Dollar ($1.00) gleare.

The Company has one class of Preferred Stock oulisigx Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (“CIBsStock”). The Class B Sto«
has five series: Series I, Series Il, Series B¥i&s 1V, and Series V.

The Class B Stock has been allocated among Setiedll, IV, and V in the amounts of 103,500; 1,780; 130,245; 542,500; and 46,/
shares, respectively as of December 31, 2011.rdhaining 3,998,448 authorized shares have not hgsigned a series.

Series | Class B Stock

There were 103,500 and 144,000 shares of $1 pae \&#ries | Class B Stock outstanding at Decembe2@®L1 and 2010, respective
The Company exchanged Common Stock and cash f80@%&hares of Series | Class B Stock in 2011 puatstmits Tender Offe




Statement on Schedule TO filed on September 121 20 “2011 Exchange Offer'and also engaged in a private sale to purt
13,000 shares of Series | Class B Stock in 201dldé#s of Series | Class B Stock are entitled t@inee a cumulative annual dividenc
$0.50 per share, payable quarterly if declaredheyBoard of Directors. In 2010, the Company p&tl&000 in dividends. In 2011,
Company paid $90,000 in dividends. At December2fi,1 and 2010, approximately $13,000 and $36,@Xpectively, of divident
which had not been declared were in arrears.
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Series | Class B Stock is redeemable after thraesyfeom the date of issuance at the option ofxbmpany at a price of $7.50 per sh
plus all unpaid dividends. Each share of Seri€$alss B Stock may, at the option of the stockholtder converted to one share
Common Stock after three years from the date afaisse or in the event the Company files an inrgglistration statement under
Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these termmshares of Series | Class B Stock were conventeddGommon Stock in 2011 or 201
In the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutjdiquidation, or winding up of the Company, haklef Series | Class B Stock tt
outstanding are entitled to $6.25 per share, plusrgpaid dividends prior to any distributions toldlers of Series Il Class B Sto
Series Il Class B Stock, Series IV Class B St@#gjes V Class B Stock, or Common Stock.

Series |l Class B Stock

There were 178,700 and 219,700 shares of $1 pae &#dries Il Class B Stock outstanding at Dece®bg?011 and 2010, respective
The Company exchanged Common Stock and cash fob@Xhares of Series Il Class B Stock in 2011 @unisto its 2011 Exchan
Offer. Holders of Series Il Class B Stock are tadi to receive a cumulative annual dividend of0$1per share, payable quarterl
declared by the Board of Directors. Holders ofi&eH Class B Stock generally have no voting righintil dividends are in arrears
unpaid for twelve consecutive quarters. In sudecthe holders of Series Il Class B Stock haveitie to elect onehird of the Boar
of Directors of the Company. In 2010, the Comppaid $660,566 in dividendsin 2011, the Company paid $274,625 in dividendt¢
December 31, 2011 and 2010, approximately $45,0@D$%110,000, respectively, of dividends which had Ipeen declared were
arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after thesgsyfrom the date of issuance at the option ofCtbmpany at a price of $15.00
share plus all unpaid dividends. Each share aéSdrClass B Stock may, at the option of the lstmtder, be converted to one shar
Common Stock after three years from the date afaisse or in the event the Company files an inrgglistration statement under
Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these termsshares of Series Il Class B Stock were convdrted Common Stock in 2011
2010. In the event of voluntary or involuntarystikition, liquidation, or winding up of the Compatmplders of Series Il Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shauss, all unpaid dividends, after distribution olalitpns to holders of Series | Clas
Stock have been satisfied and prior to any distiding to holders of Series Il Class B Stock, Setié Class B Stock, Series V Clas
Stock, or Common Stock.

Series 1l Class B Stock

There were 130,245 shares of $1 par value Seti€ddbs B Stock outstanding at December 31, 20H120110. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasimaual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, appreaiéhy $3,366,000 and $3,236,000, respectively,iwtidnds which have not be
declared were in arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after tlyemars from the date of issuance at the option @fGbmpany at a price of $15.00
share, plus all unpaid dividends. Each share oéS#l Class B Stock may, at the option of theckholder, be converted to one shai
Common Stock after three years from the date afaisse or in the event the Company files an inrgglistration statement under
Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these termsshares of Series lll Class B Stock were conventéol Common Stock in 2011
2010. In the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutjdiquidation, or winding up of the Company, haklef Series Ill Class B Sto
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shates, all unpaid dividends, after distribution olalimns to Series | Class B Stock
Series Il Class B Stock have been satisfied arat pyiany distributions to holders of Series IV €88 Stock, Series V Class B Stock
Common Stock.

Series 1V Class B Stock

There were 542,500 and 552,500 shares of $1 parev8kries IV Class B Stock outstanding at Decer@ber2011 and 201
respectively. The Company exchanged Common Stodlcash for 5,000 shares of Series
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IV Class B Stock in 2011 pursuant to its 2011 ExgjeaOffer and also engaged in a private sale tohase 5,000 shares of Serie:
Class B Stock in 2011. Holders of Series IV CRBsStock are entitled to receive a cumulative anrdieidend of $1.00 per sha
payable quarterly, if declared by the Board of Dioes. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, approximél338,000 and $5,903,0
respectively, of dividends which have not been a®d were in arrears.

Series IV Class B Stock is redeemable after thesesyfrom the date of issuance at the option ofCbpany at a price of $11.00
share plus all unpaid dividends. Each share déSéy Class B Stock may, at the option of the khatder any time subsequent to tt
years from date of issuance, be converted intoshrage of Common Stock, or in the event the Comgdéay an initial registratio
statement under the Securities Act of 1933. Puntstmathese terms, nehares of Series IV Class B Stock were convertel@Qommol
Stock in 2011 or 2010. In the event of voluntaryirvoluntary liquidation, dissolution, or windingp of the Company, holders
Series IV Class B Stock then outstanding are euntitb receive liquidating distributions of $11.08r share, unpaid dividends a
distribution obligations to Series | Class B Sto8kries Il Class B Stock, and Series Il Class & Bhave been satisfied and prior to
distribution to holders of Series V Class B StoclCommon Stock.

Series V Class B Stock

There were 46,607 and 1,232,571 shares of $1 plae v@eries V Class B Stock outstanding at Decer@ber2011 and 201
respectively. The Company exchanged Common Stodkcash for 1,173,464 shares of Series V ClasoBk3h 2011 pursuant to
2011 Exchange Offer and also engaged in a privagets purchase 12,500 shares of Series V Clagsedk $1 2011. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasinaual dividend of $0.32 per share, payable gugrtérdeclared by the Board
Directors. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, appreai@hy $914,000 and $4,093,000, respectively, ofdéds which have not be
declared were in arrears.

Series V Class B Stock is redeemable after twosyram the date of issuance at the option of then@amy at a price of $4.40 per st
plus all unpaid dividends. Each share of Serig3laés B Stock may, at the option of the stockhotder time subsequent to the dat
issuance, be converted into Common Stock. Purstmatihese terms, 6,250 shares of Series V ClassoBkSvere converted in
Common Stock in 2010 and none were converted il 20 the event of voluntary or involuntary ligatibn, dissolution, or winding |
of the Company, holders of Series V Class B Stbek toutstanding are entitled to receive liquidatiigjributions of $4.40 per shs
plus unpaid dividends after distribution obligagoto Series | Class B Stock, Series Il Class B I5t&eries Ill Class B Stock, a
Series IV Class B Stock have been satisfied arat fwiany distribution to the holders of the Comn&iack.

Common stock

The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,00@sharno par value Common Stock, of which 25,318 &0d 23,974,114 shares w
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 ar@ 2€dpectively.
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

13.

The Company has a license agreement with the Elxieutive Officer of the Company. See Note 5.

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 201028606, the Company paid $96,787; $75,831; and $30 /2spectively, to fami
members of its Chief Executive Officer for variammsulting services.

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 201028608, the Company paid $0; $20,350; and $9,94pewively, to a Directos’
company for participating in clinical trials.

The Chief Executive Officer exchanged his Prefe®éatk shares for Common Stock and cash in thetfaurarter of 2011 pursuani
the 2011 Exchange Offer on the same terms as vifened to all Preferred Stockholders. He recei86¢07 shares of Common St
and $95,843 in exchange for 5,000 shares of Skfiéyeferred Stock and 81,607 shares of Serieséfefred Stock, and he waive
total of $58,110 in unpaid dividends in arrearfie Tompanys Common Stock had a closing stock price of $1t39avember 4, 201
the expiration date of the 2011 Exchange Offer.

STOCK OPTIONS

Stock options

The Company has approved stock option plans fogtheting of stock options to employees, Directarg] consultants. Options for
purchase of 25,680 shares of Common Stock remastamding under the 1999 Stock Option Plan, wh&iminated pursuant to

terms in 2009. Options for the purchase of 2,83®,4hares of Common Stock have been issued unde20®8 Stock Option Ple
which authorized a total of
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3,000,000 shares of Common Stock upon the exeofistock options. Options for the purchase of 8,481 shares under the 2
Stock Option Plan were outstanding as of Decemltie2B811. Options for the purchase of a total d§,880 shares of Common St
remain outstanding under individual stock optioangl to Dr. Jimmie Shiu and Mr. Harry Watson. Omifor the purchase of 3,000,(
shares of Common Stock remain outstanding undep#an granted to Mr. Thomas J. Shaw.

On September 26, 2008, the Company conducted ahaBge Offer whereby employees, including executiffeers, and Directo
exchanged certain outstanding underwater option®fitions issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plarhe Company issued n
options under the 2008 Stock Option Plan to puretzasaggregate of 962,683 shares of Common Stoekcimange for the cancellat
of the tendered options. Options issued to em@syecluding executive officers, vested in 20XDptions issued to noemploye:
Directors vested in 2009.

In July 2009, the Company issued options for thelpase of a total of 1,886,425 shares to Directexscutive Officers, employees, ¢
consultants under the 2008 Stock Option Plan. h3f amount, incentive stock options for the purehak269,956 shares of Comn
Stock and NorQualified Stock Options for the purchase of 229,484res of Common Stock were issued to Executifeedd$ an
Directors. Additionally, in 2009, an option to phase Three Million (3,000,000) shares issued tonTds J. Shaw outside these p
was approved by shareholders.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee administBrplans and determines and/or recommends tBtieerd exercise prices
which options are granted. All executive compepsatincluding the granting of stock options, idetenined by the Compensation :
Benefits Committee. Shares issued upon exercisgptidns come from the Compasyauthorized but unissued Common Stock.
options vested over periods up to three years fitoendate of grant and generally expire ten yeater dffie date of grant. Unves
options issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plairexmmediately after termination of employment.

Employee options

A summary of Director, officer, and employee opfigranted and outstanding under the Plans is pezserlow:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of peri 5,508,51: $ 091 572152 % 0.94 1,057,26. $ 1.9¢
Granted — — — —  4,796,42! 0.81
Exercisec (67,127) (0.8)) (142,71Y (0.8)) (5,085 (1.30)
Forfeited (7,800 (0.85) (70,300 (3.09  (127,07Y (4.99
Outstanding at end of period 543359 § 0.91 550851 $ 0.91 572152 $ 0.94
Exercisable at end of perit 543359 $ 0.91 550851 $ 0.91 1,137,40. $ 1.44
Weighted average fair value of optic
granted during perio — — — 3 — — 3 0.5¢
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The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimatedhendiate of the grant using the Bla8kholes pricing model with the following weigh
average assumptions used for grants in 2009: &gbeolatility of 67.53%, risk free interest ratt335%, and an expected life of 8
to 8.69 years. Other than the options issuedecCthief Executive Officer, the options were issueder the 2008 Stock Option Pl:

No options were issued in 2010 or 2011.

The following table summarizes information abouteBtor, officer, and employee options outstandindes the aforementioned plan:

December 31, 2011:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares

Prices QOutstanding Life Exercisable
$ 6.9( 15,08( 0.7t 15,08(
$ 8.6 2,40( 1.4¢ 2,40(
$ 8.87 70C 2.3¢€ 70C
$ 1.3C 894,51: 6.8¢ 894,51:
$ 0.81 4,520,89: 7.54 4,520,89!

Non-employee options

A summary of options outstanding during the yeaideel December 31 and held by non-employees idlag/fo

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of peri 302,500 $ 5.4¢ 391,600 $ 6.52 454,70 $ 8.41
Granted — — — — 90,00( 0.8
Exercisec — — — — (20,000 (0.95)
Forfeited — — (89,100 (10.00) (133,100 (10.00)
Outstanding at end of peri 302,500 $ 5.4¢ 302,500 $ 5.4¢ 391,600 $ 6.52
Exercisable at end of peri 302,500 $ 5.4¢ 302,500 $ 5.4¢ 391,600 $ 6.52
Weighted average fair value of optic
granted during perio — $ — — $ — — $ 0.61

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimated len date of the grant using the Black Scholes mricimodel with the followin
assumptions: expected volatility of 67.53%, rigefinterest rate of 3.35%, and an expected li&f years. These options were is:
under the 2008 Stock Option Plan. No options vigseed in 2010 or 2011.

The following table summarizes information abouhsmployee options outstanding under the aforemeadigians at December :

2011:
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Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$ 6.9C 232,50( 0.7t 232,50(
$ 0.81 70,00( 7.54 70,00(

The Company recorded $0; $1,340,300; and $2,111886&00cksased compensation expense in 2011, 2010, and &ffectively. Tt
total intrinsic value of options exercised was $28, $124,221; and $16,388 in 2011, 2010, and 26&pectively. The aggreg
intrinsic value of options outstanding and of opticexercisable at December 31, 2011 was approXyn@ie7 million. There is r
compensation cost related to non-vested stock mptio be recognized in the future.

Options Pricing Models — Assumptions

The expected life and forfeiture rate assumptioesbased on the vesting period for each optiontgaad expected exercise behav
The assumptions for expected volatility and dividigreld are based on recent historical experieRisk{free interest rates are set us
grant-date U.S. Treasury yield curves for the spar@ds as the expected term.

14. 401(k) PLAN

The Company implemented an employee savings airémeint plan (the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that igeinded to be a tagualifiec
plan covering substantially all employees. Undwer terms of the 401(k) Plan, employees may eleciotdribute up to 88% of thi
compensation, or the statutory prescribed limitjeds. The Company may, at its discretion, matetpleyee contributions. T!
Company made matching contributions of $76,643 002 In the third quarter of 2009, the Companycalidinued its matchir
contributions until further notice.

15. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

2011 2010 2009

U.S. sale: $ 26,655,78 $ 29,577,05 $ 34,466,79
North and South America sales (excluding U 4,736,35I 4,887,07. 1,764,58
Other international sale 710,15¢ 1,755,43! 2,750,45!
Total sales $ 32,102,29 $ 36,219,56 $ 38,981,83
Long-lived asset:

U.S. $ 12,41250 $ 12,297,94 $ 13,961,44

Internationa $ 241,35: % 262,65( $ 272,73¢

The Company does not operate in separate reporsggments. The Company has minimal Itmge assets in foreign countrie
Shipments to international customers generally ireca prepayment either by wire transfer or anvismable confirmed letter of cred
The Company does extend credit to internationalocnsrs on some occasions depending upon certaamiariincluding, but not limite
to, the credit worthiness of the customer, theibtalof the country, banking restrictions, and thiee of the order. All transactions ar
U.S. currency.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA - UNAUDITED
The selected quarterly financial data for the msi@nded December 31, 2011 and 2010, have beeveddrom the Company’
unaudited financial statements and include all stdjents, consisting only of normal recurring adjents, necessary for a |

presentation of the results of the interim periods.

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2011
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, ne $ 9,74¢ $ 7,97¢ $ 8,271 % 6,10¢
Cost of sales 6,457 4,84( 4,881 5,021
Gross profit 3,291 3,13¢ 3,39( 1,087
Total operating expenses 3,391 4,12¢ 3,41¢ 4,06:
Income (loss) from operations (10C) (98¢) (26) (2,976
Interest and other incon 16 18 15 14
Interest expense, n (57 (66) (63 (56)
Litigation settlements, nt 1,90(¢ 1,90( 1,90( —
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 35 17 (2) (37
Net income (loss 1,72¢ 847 1,82¢ (2,98))
Preferred stock dividend requirements (342 (342) (342) (230)
Earnings (loss) applicable to common sharehol $ 138 $ 508 $ 1486 $ (3,21))
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢ $ (0.19)
Diluted earnings (loss) per shz $ 0.0t $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢6 $ (0.13)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 23,986,11 24,004,11 24,027,05 24,667,66
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 26,664,59 26,189,07 25,950,830 24.667,66
Gross profit margin 33.8% 39.3% 41.0% 17.8%
(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)
2010
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, net $ 8,46¢ $ 7,44¢ $ 12,23t $ 8,07(C
Cost of sale: 5,01t 4,62¢ 7,01¢ 7,042
Gross profit 3,451 2,82t 5,217 1,02¢
Total operating expens: 5,63¢ 5,85¢4 4,18¢ 3,511
Income (loss) from operations (2,189 (3,029 1,032 (2,487
Interest and other incon 6 3 1C 14
Interest expense, n (91) (76) (70 (66)
Litigation settlements, nt — — 7,25¢ 1,90¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 2 (337) — 15¢
Net income (loss (2,27]) (2,765 8,231 (799
Preferred stock dividend requireme (343 (349 (349 (342
Earnings (loss) applicable to common shareholders  $ (2,619 $ (3,109 $ 7,88t $ (1,135
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Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Net earnings (loss) per she basic $ (0.10) $ (0.19) $ 03: $ (0.0%)
Net earnings (loss) per she diluted (0.17) $ (0.19) $ 0.2¢ (0.05)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 23,825,14 23,825,14 23,887,02 23,953,80
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 23,825,14 23,825,14 28,767,76 23,953,80
Gross profit margin 40.8% 37.9% 42.6% 12.7%

Major variances for 2011 compared to 2010 are duevter sales volumes, lower operating expensésgpity litigation costs and sto
option expense, and lower litigation proceeds.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéson Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securitieh&nxge Act of 1934 (the “Exchange ActMlanagement, with the participation
our President, Chairman, and Chief Executive Offid&omas J. Shaw (the “CEO"3nd our Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Douglas W. Cowan (the “CFO”gcting in their capacities as our principal exeaitind financial officers, evaluated the effectesn of oL
disclosure controls and procedures, as defineduie R3a15(e) under the Exchange Act. The term disclosorgrols and procedures me
controls and other procedures that are designedigare that information required to be disclosedi®yn our periodic reports is: i) record
processed, summarized, and reported within the peréeods specified in the Securities and Exchangmm@ission’s (the “SEC"yules ani
forms; and ii) accumulated and communicated to Management, including our principal executive amthgpal financial officers, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure. Based upon this evaluation, @O and CFO concluded that, as
December 31, 2011, our disclosure controls andgutaes were effective.

Managemeris Annual Report on Internal Control over Finan&eabporting

Management is responsible for establishing and tai@ing adequate internal control over our finaheigporting as defined

Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act. The term internalticrover financial reporting means a process desigoy, or under the supervis
of, our principal executive and principal financadficers and effected by our Board of Directorsadgement and other personnel, to prc
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability imdintial reporting and the preparation of financtdtements for external purpose:
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfex and includes those policies and proceduras {fj pertain to the maintenance
records that in reasonable detail accurately amly f@flect our transactions and dispositions séets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thi
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiafation of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting princig
and that our receipts and expenditures are beirdgmaly in accordance with authorizations of Mamaget and Directors; and (iii) provi
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidegtigction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opaition of our assets that could ha
material effect on our financial statements. Mamagnt used thénternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisgiogvaluate the effectiveness of our internal drdver financial reporting as requi
by paragraph (c) of Rule 13&% under the Exchange Act. Management, with thiéggzation of our CEO and CFO, concluded that inberna
control over financial reporting as of December 2111, was effective. No material weaknesses irirdarnal control over financial reporti
were identified by Management.

Our Management, including the CEO and CFO, doe&xyect that our disclosure controls and procedoresir internal control ov
financial reporting will prevent or detect all erscand all instances of fraud. A control systempratter how well designed and operated
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratetth control system’s objectives will be met.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repaortin

There have been no changes during the fourth quafr2011 or subsequent to December 31, 2011 inimdernal control over financi
reporting or in any other factor that has mateyiaffected or is reasonably likely to materiallyfeat our internal control over financ
reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

We exchanged 1,246,964 shares of Common Stockdasit) for 1,246,964 shares of our Class B Converieferred Stock as
November 4, 2011 pursuant to the 2011 Exchanger Offée exchanged 30,500 shares of Common Stock ¢asld) for 30,500 shares of
Preferred Stock as of December 30, 2011 outsidlesof
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2011 Exchange Offer. The 2011 Exchange Offer Wesewl to all our Preferred Stockholders. The saletside of the 2011 Exchange C
were made to three of our Preferred Shareholders didh not participate in the 2011 Exchange Offer.accordance with the terms of b
exchange transactions, participating Preferred Kdtaders agreed to waive all unpaid dividends ireans associated with their tende
Preferred Stock. Both transactions are exempt fregistration under the Securities Act pursuanSaztion 3(a)(9) of the Securities |
because the securities were exchanged with exisgngrity holders exclusively where no commissiontber remuneration was paid or gi
directly or indirectly for soliciting such exchange

PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

The following table sets forth information concexgpiour Directors, executives, and certain of ognificant employees as of the ¢
of this report. Our Board of Directors currentlgnsists of a total of six (6) members, three (3jnbers of which are Class 1 Directors
three (3) of which are Class 2 Directors which sdor two-year terms. Marwan Saker served as asc&Director until February 29, 2012.

Position

Term as
Director
Expires

Name Age
EXECUTIVES
Thomas J. Sha 61

Douglas W. Cowan 68
Russell B. Kuhlmau 58
Michele M. Larios 45
Steven R. Wisne 54

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Marco Laterzz 64
Amy Mack 44
Marwan Sake 56
Clarence Zierhu 83

SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Kathryn M. Duesmai 49
Lawrence G. Salern 51

Shayne Blythe 43
John W. Fort 11l 43
James A. Hoove 64
R. John Mada 51
Judy Ni Zhu 53
Executives

Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer, ahas€ 2 Directo

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasufnincipal Accounting
Officer, and Class 2 Directt

Vice President, Sale

Vice President, General Counsel, and Secre

Executive Vice President, Engineering & Productimd Class 1 Directc

Class 1 Directo
Class 1 Directo
Former Class 2 Directc
Class 2 Directo

Executive Director, Global Heal
Director of Operation

Director of Sales and Marketing Logisti
Director of Accounting

Director of Quality Assuranc
Production Manage

Research and Development Mana

2012
2012

N/A
N/A
2013

2013
2013
2012
2012

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, has served as Chaiofm#re Board, President, Chief Executive Officand Director since o
inception. We believe it is appropriate for Mr.a8hto continue to serve as a Director and as ther@an of the Board because of his ¢
knowledge of the strengths and weaknesses of adupts (as their primary inventor) and of the Conmypéas its Founder). Further,
strategic knowledge of the Company and its comigetiénvironment arising from his ongoing servicasita CEO is vital to the succes:
supervision of the Company by the Board of Direstdfinally, Mr. Shaw’s educational background iHbEngineering and

23




Table of Contents

Accounting is helpful to Board deliberations. Ildd&ion to his duties overseeing our Managementcdrginues to lead our design tear
product development of other medical safety devibasutilize, among other things, his unique peg@ririction ring technology. Mr. Shaw t
extensive experience in industrial product desigh lsas developed several solutions to complicatechanical engineering challenges. He
been granted multiple patents and has additiortehpapending.

Douglas W. Cowan is a Vice President and our CRia&ncial Officer, Treasurer, Principal Accounti@dficer, and a Directol
Mr. Cowan joined us as Chief Financial Officer amds elected to the Board of Directors in 1999. hbééeve it is appropriate Mr. Cow
continue to serve as a Director due to his levahaeblvement in the financial state of the Compday its CFO) as well as his lead roli
supervising all internal control and disclosure tooinprocedures and statements. He also servéiseagrimary contact for investors wh
enables him to bring their concerns to the Boar@jmoropriate topics as they arise. His expertisa &PA and experience as the Company’
CFO allow him to guide the Board, upon requesthwitgard to financial matters. He is responsilgie dur financial, accounting, ri
management, and forecasting functions.

Russell B. Kuhlman joined us in February 1997 andur Vice President, Sales. Mr. Kuhlman is respigla for management of t
sales force and liaison with GPOs and product itrgifior our sales organization, as well as distidou Mr. Kuhlmans efforts with us hay
resulted in bringing onboard Specialty Distributonsfluencing legislation, and educating influehtteealthcare representatives about
benefits of our product line. Mr. Kuhiman is resggel throughout the industry and is a main contdabto the safety effort in this country.

Michele M. Larios joined us in February 1998 andrently serves as our Vice President, General Gaduasd Secretary. Ms. Lar
is responsible for our legal and legislative, humesource, and regulatory functions. In additomvbrking on all legal matters, both intern;
and with outside counsel, Ms. Larios oversees workny pertinent legislative issues and all relevegulatory matters.

Steven R. Wisner joined us in October 1999 as Bikex¥ice President, Engineering and Production asné Director. We believe
is appropriate that Mr. Wisner continue to serva &irector due to his extensive experience in af@mal management. His role in overse
all engineering, production, and foreign salesvedldnim to provide timely and insightful guidancgaeding the effect of Board decisions on
Company’s abilities to meet its goals. Mr. Wisiserésponsibilities include the management of ergging, production, Chinese operatic
quality assurance, information technology, andritaéonal sales. Mr. Wisner has extensive expeden product design, development,
manufacturing.

Independent Directors

Marco Laterza joined us as a Director effectivefMarch 22, 2005. We believe it is appropriate. Materza continue to serve &
Director because of his skills as a CPA in actixecpce as well as his decades of experience irsimgvindividuals and entities with regarc
corporate planning and financial issues. SucHss&itd experience provide a valuable contributiohis role as the designated financial ex
on the Audit Committee as well as provide valuabldependent accounting advice to the Board. Sik8%8, Mr. Laterza has owned :
operated a public accounting practice. His practiccludes corporate, partnership and individughtian, compilation/review of financi
statements, financial planning, business consyliing trusts and estates. From 2004 to the pré&emtaterza has also served as the Trea
for EZ Blue Software Corporation, a private softe’aompany. Since 2009, Mr. Laterza has served@s Rfesident of SpectraComp, Cor}
private holding company. Formerly, Mr. Laterza veasployed in a number of positions from 1977 to3.@#8h El Paso Natural Gas Compi
eventually serving as its Director of Accounting.

Amy Mack joined us as a Director on November 19720We believe it is appropriate that Ms. Macktomre as a Board member «
both to her experience as a nurse (the primaryl tetar of our products) as well as her experignaginning her own company. Since Apri
2000, she has been the Secretary of EmergiStafégogiates, a nursing agency, and she served &htbENursing Officer of EmergiStaff
Associates from 2000 to 2011. From 2003 to 20h8,8as the Owner and Aesthetics Nurse SpecialisBfa O2 & Medical Aesthetics.
2011, she was involved with Report Prep. Ms. Madlesponsibilities included nurse and utilizatieniew, identification and application
evidence based medicine resources to medicatiopmedure requests, and review of workers’ comgigms claims.

24




Table of Contents

Marwan Saker joined our Board of Directors in J@A80 and resigned on February 29, 2012. Mr. Ss&nred as Chief Executi
Officer of Sovana, Inc., a private internationalde company. He served as President of Interradtidrports & Consulting Inc., a privi
export management company acting as sales repatisentmaster franchisee and franchise consultameldping Middle East markets
numerous U.S. manufacturers in agriculture, fastdfdiome, and contract furnishing industries. Heved as Manager of Hanneke Corj
private trust. He served as a Member of My Investis, LLC, a private entity. He served as PresidérSaker Investments Inc., a priv
investment company. He was President of Figlangdeld@ment, a private real estate development cognpdvir. Saker has acted a
representative for U.S. companies seeking disiohuticensing, and franchising in the Middle Edstirope, and North Africa. Mr. Saker v
instrumental in developing successful partnersiipsore than 15 countries.

Clarence Zierhut has served on our Board of Dirscsince April 1996. We believe it is appropriéde Mr. Zierhut to continue 1
serve as a Director primarily due to his lifetinfeegperience in conception and development of imtiwe products as well as his experienc
adapting such products to address mass produssoes. During his professional career, Mr. ZieHag created over 3,000 product design
more than 350 companies worldwide, in virtually gvield of manufacturing, and has won many intéiorel awards for design excellen:
His clients have included Johnson & Johnson, Ablsadtuld, and McDonnell Douglas.

Significant Employees

Kathryn M. Duesman, RN, joined us in 1996 and autfyeserves as the Executive Director, Global HealShe provides clinic
expertise on existing products as well as thosgeielopment. She has been instrumental in deveddpaining and marketing materials .
has spoken and been published on safety issuesDidsman works with international agencies to menthe use of safe technologie
developing countries.

Lawrence G. Salerno has been employed with us si8& and has served as Director of Operationsugosince 1998. He
responsible for the manufacture of all our produess well as all product development and proceseldpment projects. In addition,
supervises all aspects of the construction andresipa of our facilities in Little EIm, Texas. MBalerno is the brother of a 5% sharehc
(and consultant to the Company) who ceased tolt®@shareholder in 2008.

Shayne Blythe has been with us since 2001 andri®wactor of Sales and Marketing Logistics. Steesponsible for developing ¢
implementing strategic directions, objectives, cosygnsive sales and marketing plans, and programaddition, she directs and oversee
aspects of the distribution process and custonrgicgepolicies in order to monitor and maintain touser satisfaction.

John W. Fort Ill is our Director of Accounting. MFort joined us in March of 2000 as a Financiablst and has served as
Director of Accounting since October of 2002. ldimary responsibilities include managing the daylay operations of the Accounting
Finance Department and coordination of the annudits, and interim reviews by our independent antants, as well as our cost accoun
and forecasting functions.

James A. Hoover joined us in February 1996 anduisirector of Quality Assurance. Prior to his bedng Director of Qualit
Assurance he was Production Manager. He is reggerfer our quality assurance functions. Mr. Hephas also developed and impleme
FDA required procedures and has been involveddar-DA inspection process.

R. John Maday joined us in July 1999 and is ourdBection Manager. He is responsible for supervisibrihe production of o
products. Prior to becoming Production Managedamuary 1, 2005, he served as our Production Gedeparvisor. Mr. Maday has extens
manufacturing experience in both class Il and Iédical devices.

Judy Ni Zhu joined us in 1995 and is our Research@evelopment Manager. Her primary focus is on peoduct development a
improvement of current products. Prior to joiniag, Ms. Zhu worked as a design engineer with MavBlan the original 3mL syringe a
other SBIR grant projects.
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FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS
There are no family relationships among the ab@regns except as set forth above.
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES
No Directors hold directorships in reporting comigan
INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None of the above persons or any business in wduich person was an executive officer have beeriviegtdn a bankruptcy petitio
been subject to a criminal proceeding (excludimadfitr violations and other minor offenses), beehjsct to any order enjoining or suspenc
their involvement in any type of business, or bparty to an alleged violation of a securities laammodities law, law or regulation respec
financial institutions or insurance companies, awegulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud, orles of any organization that has disciplir
authority over its members.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMRNCE

Section 16 of the Exchange Act requires our Dinetexecutive officers, and persons who own moae 0% of a registered clas:
our equity securities to file with the SEC initi@ports of beneficial ownership (Form 3) and repoftchanges in beneficial ownership (Fa
4 and 5) of our Common Stock and our other equtusties. Officers, Directors, and greater th@folshareholders are required by the SEC’
regulations to furnish us with copies of all Seati®(a) reports they file. Based on our reviewls forms submitted to us during and \
respect to its most recent fiscal year, all of Directors, executive officers, and 10% shareholfitad all reports timely.

CODE OF ETHICS

Effective as of March 9, 2004, we adopted a codetbits that applies to all employees, includingt ot limited to, our princip
executive and financial officers. Our Code of Besis Conduct and Ethics is designed to deter waingand to promote:

1. Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethicahdiing of actual or apparent conflicts of intesebetween
personal and professional relationships;

2. Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabgldisure in reports and documents that we file vathsubmit to,
the SEC and in our other public communications;

3. Compliance with applicable governmental laws, rusesl regulations;

4, The prompt, internal reporting of violations of tbede to an appropriate person or persons idemtifiehe code;
and

5. Accountability for adherence to the code.

A copy of the code, as amended in 2009, is incatedrherein as Exhibit No. 14We have posted a copy of the code on our we
at www.vanishpoint.com/investor.asp. Please foltberlink to “Governance” then follow the link t&€harters,” then click onRVP Corporat
Code of Conduct.”Any amendment to this code or waiver of its appilaato the principal executive officer, principfihancial officer
principal accounting officer, or controller or slari person shall be disclosed to investors by meéasForm 8K filing with the SEC. We wi
provide to any person without charge, upon req@estpy of such code of ethics. Such requestsighmeusubmitted in writing to Mr. Dougl
W. Cowan at 511 Lobo Lane, P.O. Box 9, Little Elfexas 75068-0009.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

We have a separatetlesignated standing Audit Committee establishedctordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the ExchaAgt
consisting of Clarence Zierhut and Marco Laterkéarwan Saker served on the Audit Committee unsldeisignation on February 29, 20
Each of the members of the Audit Committee is irthejent as determined by the NYSE Amex rules.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that we teveast one financial expert serving on the A@titnmittee. Mr. Marco Later
serves as our designated Audit Committee Finamoipert. Mr. Laterza is independent as definedMiedit Committee members by the list
standards of the NYSE Amex.
ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Objectives of Our Compensation Plan

Our executive officer compensation program (the ffpensation Program’is based on the belief that competitive compensat
essential to attract, retain, motivate, and rewagthly qualified and industrious executive officer®ur Compensation Program is intende
accomplish the following:

attract and retain highly talented and productixecetive officers;

provide incentives and rewards for superior peréomoe by the executive officers; and

align the interests of executive officers with theerests of our stockholders.

What the Compensation Program Is Designed to Award
Our Compensation Program is designed to awarddgibrior long-term performance by our executivécefs and their loyalty.

Summary of Each Element of Compensation

To achieve these objectives, the Compensation amfig's Committee has approved an executive offioenpensation program tl
consists of four basic components:

base salary;

short-term incentive compensation in the form afhchonuses;

periodic long-term incentive compensation in therf@f stock options; and

medical, life, and benefit programs (which are galhe available on the same terms to all employees)
Why We Choose to Pay Each Element of Our Compensati Program
Base Salary

We choose to pay a significant component of our pemsation in base salary due to the fact that man€ial performance
constrained by the monopolistic activities of BDIntil such time as we believe that we have accesthe market, we believe that it

appropriate to weigh our Compensation Program heawvfavor of base salaries rather than in incemttompensation.
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Cash Bonuses

From time to time and when our cash reserves all@vgrant cash bonuses in order to reward sigmifiefforts or the accomplishmi
of short term goals. The Compensation and Ben€fithmittee granted such bonuses in 2010 to cestadoutive officers in recognition of 1
time and effort expended by such executive offiaehnich led to the settlement agreement with Ablwoid Hospira. The preparation for
trial and ultimate settlement was an extraordirtanee commitment for the executive officers to whbomuses were granted and resulted
total of approximately $14 million paid to us otene. Thomas J. Shaw declined any bonus.

Prior to 2010, the last bonuses were granted 3200
Long-Term Incentives: Stock Options

Long-term incentives are provided through grants oflstmations. The grants are designed to align therésts of executive office
with those of stockholders and to provide each etee officer with a significant incentive to mareaffom the perspective of an owner witt
equity stake in the Company.

How We Determine the Amount or Formula for Paymentin Light of Our Objectives

Executive compensation remains the same until tisemereview of such compensation by the Compemsatnd Benefits Committe
Compensation, other than that of the Chief Exeeutfficer, has generally not been reviewed annuallnder the terms of Mr. Shas’
employment agreement, his compensation is reviemedally.

Base Salary

The base salary for each of our executive officesubjectively determined primarily on the badishe following factors: experienc
individual performance, contribution to our perf@mnte, level of responsibility, duties and functiogalary levels in effect for compara
positions within and without our industry, and mm&l base salary comparability considerations. elmw, salaries can also be affected by
long-term needs.

These base salaries are reviewed periodically aagbe adjusted based upon the factors discusstbe iprevious paragraph, as v
as upon individual performance during the previfissal year, changes in the duties, responsilslitied functions of the executive officer,
general changes in the compensation peer groughichwve compete for executive talent. The relatigght given to each of these factor
the Compensation and Benefits Committeeécommendation differs from individual to indivad, as the Compensation and Ben
Committee deems appropriate.

Beginning August 1, 2009, all employees above sameisalary level had their salaries reduced by .10®%hough certain sala
reductions remain in place, we granted paymentatoemployees to offset such salary reductionhénfirst and third quarters of 2010.
Executive Officers’ and other employees’ salariestinue to be reduced by 10% from the levels pigoAugust 2009. However, Mr. Shasv’
Employment Agreement provides salary is automayidaktreased by the percentage increase in theuooass price index (“CPI"from the
previous year. The Compensation and Benefits Coimendecided to increase Mr. Shawalary (which has also been cut by 10%) by $1
over his 2011 salary for 2012.

Cash Bonuses

The bonuses, when paid, are paid on a discretiobasjs as determined by the Compensation and Ber@fimmittee. Factc
considered by the Compensation and Benefits Comenithclude personal performance, level of respditgiband the factors used
determination of base salary as stated above, exddpa greater focus on the prior fiscal yeaheTCompensation and Benefits Comm
also considers our need to retain cash in decidimgther to grant cash bonuses.
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Long-Term Incentive: Sock Options

We have issued stock options to our employees fioma to time and may do so in the future. We ditlissue any stock options
2011. Options are generally granted to regulastiimle employees and officers except for our CEO.

In 2009, the Compensation and Benefits Committeatgd an option to Thomas J. Shaw, our CEO, whitioo grant was approv
by the shareholders later that year. The optiosigvanted outside of any plan and was for the @selof 3,000,000 shares of Common Stock.

If stock options are to be issued, Management pespa proposal to the Compensation and BenefitsnGittee. Considerations
Management in its initial proposal in determininguatable aggregate fair market value of optionsegranted include our financial conditi
the number of options already outstanding, and#reefit to the norexecutive officer employees. The proposal includé&srmation relating t
the expected expense of such grants to be recahbizeis, the approximate number of options to badd, the number of options curre
outstanding, the employees to be included, the ainofistock currently outstanding, and the methoden which the options would
awarded.

Once the dollar amount of options to be grantedgproved by the Compensation and Benefits Commiltesnagement begi
determining the aggregate number of shares undegriyptions that can be granted under such appbaakd on the fair value of an option
the purchase of one underlying share). Factotaded in the determination of the value of an aptjpant for the purchase of one share inc
current market price of the Company’s stock, theppsed exercise price, the proposed expiration, tlatevolatility of the Companyg’ stock
and the risk free rate. We may retain an indepetoletside consultant to determine such valuethénpast we have utilized the BlaSkhole
model as well as the binomial model, but we mayaiker methods in the future as more appropriathods are developed.

Management provides the Compensation and Beneditsn@ittee with a proposal regarding option grantexecutive officers. If t
recommendation is acceptable, the committee gthateptions. If the committee feels changes anéteak it grants options on its own terms.

With regard to many past grants, after the aggeegaimber of shares underlying the options to batgdawas determined,
allocated the options to our various departmentsgua factor based on their annual compensatiorditineir performance rating. 1
individual employee’s allocation factor was the mwator of a fraction. The denominator was the depent's sum of all factors (annt
compensation times performance ratings of all tlgghdée employees). The resulting fraction was tiplied by the stock options to be awar
to determine the employewindividual portion of the aggregate approvedami Future grants may be based on the valuentfiloations t
the Company and not necessarily pursuant to amyufiar.

The allocation may be further reviewed by each depent's management if they believed certain employee® wet awarded :
appropriate number of options. Management wouldictan any suggestions.

Each stock option grant to employees allows theleyee to acquire shares of Common Stock at a fpeéek per share (never I
than the closing stock price of the Common Stocktendate of grant) for a fixed period (usually $exars). With regard to grants priol
2009, each option generally became exercisableg #itee years, contingent upon the emplogeeontinued employment with us.
exceptions include options issued to Officers andeddors pursuant to the Exchange Offer, which edsmmediately for nommploye:
Directors and after one year for employees (incigd¢mployee Directors) and options granted in 20B&h vested in one year for execu
officers and immediately for noemployee Directors. Accordingly, generally stagkion grants will provide a return to the employedy if
the employee remains employed by us during theéngeperiod, and then only if the market price af tinderlying Common Stock apprecia
Future grants may vest over a shorter or longeoger
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How Each Compensation Element and Decision Fits IntOverall Compensation Objectives

Our Compensation Program is intended to accomplishfollowing objectives: 1) attract and retain lligtalented and producti
executive officers; 2) provide incentives and redgafor superior performance by the executive officand 3) align the interests of execu
officers with the interests of our stockholders.

We ensure, through periodic retention of compearatbnsulting experts to provide a benchmark amalysindustry compensatic
that overall compensation is sufficient to attractd retain highly talented and productive executifiicers. We pay the bulk of c
compensation in the form of cash compensation dued fact that competing in an antmpetitive environment means that results will
always be commensurate with performance. We beltbat the performance of our executives has begstamding. We believe this
especially true given the ardémpetitive environment in which we operate. Ba@wuare granted occasionally to recognize extraary
performance and/or extraordinary job requirememé& believe this approach and weighting of comptmsalements is necessary to re
our executive talent due to the environment in Whi@ operate.

Periodically, we grant stock options with the iritea provide both an incentive and reward to exgeubfficers for longtermr
performance and to align the interests of our egg@s with that of the shareholders.

Shareholder Advisory Votes
As a smaller reporting company, we are not yetireguo solicit shareholder advisory votes withpexs to executive compensation.
Allocation Between Long-Term/Current and Between Cah/Non-Cash Compensation

All of our long-term compensation consists of rash compensation in the form of stock options. BW&keve that the granting
stock options incentivizes executives to maximige longterm strengths as well as our stock price. Howevecause we are operating
monopolistic environment and our stock price htkelrelationship with our performance, the mog#icant component of compensatiol
base salary and not stock options. Managemententivized to maximize shareholder value and héllrewarded if they do so. Howeve
significant base salary enables us to retain thispetent Management despite the current inabdigyrovide valuable equity incentives.

How Determinations Are Made as to When Awards Are @nted

Generally, option awards to executive officers granted by the Compensation and Benefits Committekfor others are grantec
the discretion of the Board after recommendatiothefCompensation and Benefits Committee or orwdinemittees own initiative. No awart
are granted if the Compensation and Benefits Cotaedoes not support a recommendation.

Unfortunately, our stock price does not always reacexpected to our achievements. Accordingliinas, options have been grar
to aid in retaining competent and experienced ezl without regard to the then current stock ari¢iowever, such options always h
exercise prices that are at or above fair markietevan the date of grant.

In addition, there is no relationship between tagedf grant of options and our possession of ri@teonpublic information (i.e., w
grant options without regard to whether or not we ia possession of material npaoblic information as we usually are in possessibauct
information). Furthermore, it is our policy withgard to options that (although the options coaakercised) the underlying shares coulc
be sold into the market while the executive wapdasession of material ngublic information under our insider trading policiccordingly
we believe that there is minimal risk of the exaauprofiting from such material nonpublic infornat.
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What Specific Items of Corporate Performance Are Taen Into Account in Setting Compensation Policiesrad Making Compensatior
Decisions

Cash reserves as well as trends in sales andarestaken into account when considering the adiligabf increasing base salaries
granting cash bonuses. However, no specific iteht®rporate performance are taken into accouseiting executive compensation due tc
fact that we compete in a monopolistic environmantl, therefore, significant achievement or perforoeais not always correlated w
corporate results. At such times that any of thiszors make it inadvisable to increase salariegrant bonuses as advisable, 1
consideration is given to increasing option awaadting into account the value of prior option awsard

Awards are granted on the basis of historical perémce. Accordingly, there is no discretion torgthe awards once granted.
How Compensation Reflects Individual Performance

Executive compensation is not based on the indalidwcontribution to specific, quantitative corporatgectives due to the fact tl
we compete in a monopolistic environment. Howetlee, individuals contribution to our performance is determinedspant to qualitativ
factors as discussed above under “How We Deterthem@mount or Formula for Payment in Light of Oubj€xtives.”

Factors We Consider in Determining to Change Compesation Materially

We consider our cash position, current liquidignils, and the short-term and |lalegm needs for cash reserves (especially in lif
the hostile environment in which we operate) whealating whether we can change compensation rafjeat a given time.

On an individual-by-individual basis, we also calesithe value of past option compensation, the etitiyeness of that individuad’
base salary, and that individual's contributiorotw goals.

The Impact of the Accounting and Tax Treatments oDur Types of Compensation

Stock options granted to executives and other eyepl® are expensed for accounting purposes und&tdlok Compensation Topic
the Financial Accounting Standards Board AccounStandards Codification. We expense all of ouromptosts as we do the costs of sali
and any periodic bonuses. Accordingly, the impafctax treatment of various compensation forms doest impact our compensati
decisions. Stock option expense is not recogniaetax purposes, except in the case of non-qedlifitock options. For najqualified stoc
options, the intrinsic value of the option is resizgd when the option is exercised.

Our Policy Regarding Stock Ownership and Hedging

We do not have a policy regarding stock ownerslyipekecutive officers. We prohibit certain stoclrtsactions by employees
Directors, including:

1. Purchases and sales of our stock within a six mpetiod,;
2. Short sales of our stock; and
3. Transactions in puts, calls, or other derivativeusiies involving our stock.

Furthermore, employees and Directors are requagad-clear any hedging transactions.
Benchmarking of Our Compensation Program

In 2003, we hired Trinity Executive Recruiters,.Irto assist us in providing benchmarks for the rgatomponent of executi
compensation by similarly sized companies in simidustries for persons that hold
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positions which are currently fulfilled by variousembers of our executive team. These benchmarksaat support existing execut
compensation.

The Role of Our Executives and Directors in Deternming Compensation

Management establishes the initial recommendatimgarding compensation for all employees, includithgmselves. Ti
Compensation and Benefits Committee reviews exeegtbmpensation changes and the process by whéantiployees are compensated.

Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement

We have an Employment Agreement with Mr. ThomaShhw which was modified effective January 1, 200&void adverse ti
consequences to Mr. Shaw created by the passdge Afmerican Jobs Creation Act of 2004. No otharetives or Directors are compens:
pursuant to employment agreements.

Our Employment Agreement with Mr. Shaw (the “Emptant Agreement”provides for an initial period of three years whades
December 31, 2010 and automatically and continyoresiews for consecutive twgear periods. The Employment Agreement is termie
either by us or Mr. Shaw upon 30 days’ written o@tbr upon Mr. Shaw's death.

The Employment Agreement provides for an annuargalf at least $416,399.88 with an annual salacyeiase equal to no less t
the percentage increase in the CPI over the prear.y The Employment Agreement requires that MavBé salary be reviewed by f
Compensation and Benefits Committee annually, whldil make such increases as it considers appteprMr. Shaw took a 10% salary
in August of 2009, along with all other executivificers and other employees earning over a ceralary. In 2010, Mr. Shaw recei
$41,681.64 to offset his salary reductions throAggust 20, 2010. In 2012, the Compensation anceiBisnCommittee increased his salary
$13,904 over his 2011 salary.

Under the Employment Agreement, we are obligategré@ide certain benefits, including, but not liedtto, participation in qualifie
pension plan and profit-sharing plans, participatio the Companyg Cafeteria Plan and other such insurance bengfitéided to othe
executives, paid vacation, and sick leave. Weadse obligated to furnish him with a cellular tdtepe and suitable office space as we
reimburse him for any reasonable and necessargfquicket travel and entertainment expenses indusgehim in carrying out his duties &
responsibilities, membership dues to professiorgdmizations, and any business-related seminarsanfdrences.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, we are dielibto indemnify Mr. Shaw for all legal expensesurt costs, and all liabiliti¢
incurred in connection with any proceeding invotyimm by reason of his being an officer, employ®eagent of the Company. We are fur
obligated to pay reasonable attorney fees and eggeand court and other costs associated withefésise in the event that, in Mr. Shawgole
judgment, he needs to retain counsel or otherwipered his personal funds for his defer

Upon his death, Mr. Shaw’estate shall be entitled to his salary throughdéite of death, applicable benefits, and reimiouese o
expenses.

We have the right to terminate the Employment Agreet if Mr. Shaw incurs a permanent disability dgrithe term of h
employment. A permanent disability means that 8fvaw is unable to engage in any substantial gaadtivity by reason of any medice
determinable physical or mental impairment which ba expected to result in death or can be expeotéabt for a continuous period of
less than 12 months or is, by reason of any mdgidaterminable physical or mental impairment whien be expected to result in deat
can be expected to last for a continuous periagobiess than 12 months, receiving income replace¢tmenefits for a period of not less the
months under an accident and health plan covermgaees of the Company. Mr. Shaw shall also bengekto be disabled if he is determi
to be totally disabled by the Social Security Adistiration. In such event, Mr. Shaw is entitledhie salary through the date of terminat
reimbursement of expenses, and salary for a pefi@d months as well as applicable benefits.
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Mr. Shaw’s employment may be terminated for cause whictefgéd to be conviction of a felony which is maadlgi detrimental t
the Company, proof, as determined finally by a toficompetent jurisdiction of the gross negligencevillful misconduct which is material
detrimental to the Company or proof, as determifiedlly by a court of competent jurisdiction, oftaeach of a fiduciary duty which
materially detrimental to the Company. In suchreyvle shall be entitled to his salary throughdhte of termination plus reimbursemen
expenses.

If Mr. Shaw is terminated without cause and nohiatimplicit request, Mr. Shaw shall be entitledhis salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, his sdtar24 months, as well as applicable benefits.

If Mr. Shaw resigns (other than because of a changeontrol), he is entitled to his salary througie date of terminatio
reimbursement of expenses, salary for 90 daysapplicable benefits.

Mr. Shaw has the right under this agreement tagresi the event that there is a change in conttol:.Change of Control’shall be
deemed to have occurred on either of the follovdates: (i) the date any one person (other tharSiaw), or more than one person acting
group, acquires (or has acquired during thentith period ending on the date of the most reeequisition by such person or perse
ownership of stock of the Company possessing 30%ane of the total possible voting power of thecktof the Company (assuming
immediate conversion of all then outstanding cotibler preferred stock) or (ii) the date a majoritfymembers of the Board of Director:
replaced during any 1&wonth period by Directors whose appointment or tedacis not endorsed by a majority of the membefrghe
Companys Board of Directors before the date of the appoémt or election. Mr. Shaw further has the rightdsign if there is a change
ownership. A change in ownership is defined toehagcurred on the date that any one person (dtla@r ¥Mr. Shaw) or more than one pel
acting as a group acquires ownership of the Comigastpck that, together with the stock previouslidH®y such person or group, constiti
more than 50% of the total fair market value oaltatoting power (assuming the immediate conversibmll then outstanding convertil
preferred stock) of the Company. In such event Sfaw is entitled to salary through the date ofmteation, salary for 24 montt
reimbursement of expenses, and applicable benefits.

Mr. Shaws commitment to the Company may not be construegragenting him from participating in other busises or fror
investing his personal assets as may require antasdr incidental time in the management, congemaand protection of such investme
provided such investments or businesses cannairistroed as being competitive or in conflict witle tusiness of the Company.

Mr. Shaw has agreed to a one-year nompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employessohe year, and not make known
customers or accounts or to call on or solicit accounts or customers in the event of terminatiohi® employment for one year unless
termination is without cause or pursuant to a ckasfgcontrol or ownership.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation and Benefits Committee has revdieavel discussed the COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANASIS
required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with Mgeaent, andpased on the review and discussions referred paiagraph (e)(5)(i)(A) ¢
Item 407 of Regulation &; has recommended to the Board of Directors that COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS |
included in this report on Form 10-K.

CLARENCE ZIERHU1
MARCO LATERZA
AMY MACK
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SUMMARY OF TOTAL COMPENSATION

The following Summary Compensation Table sets ftrthtotal compensation paid or accrued by us theepast three fiscal years
or for the account of the principal executive dfficthe principal financial officer, and the thigghest paid additional executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2009-2011

Option All Other
Salary @ Bonus Awards @ Compensation® Total

Name and Principal Position Year (%) (%) $) $) $
Thomas J. Shar 2009 399,887 — 1,762,501 4,80¢ 2,167,19
President and CE! 2010 427,854 — — — 427,85:
(principal executive officer 2011 392,810 — — — 392,81(
Michele M. Larios 2009 336,676 — 89,85¢ 4,047 430,58:
Vice President 2010 350,051 200,00( — — 550,05:
General Counst 2011 315,281 — — — 315,28:
Douglas W. Cowal 2009 278,289 — 57,57t 3,34¢ 339,21(
Vice President, CF( 2010 290,406 35,00( — 325,40t
(principal financial officer, principal 2011 261,051 — — — 261,05:

accounting officer

Steven R. Wisne 2009 278,289 — 13,80¢ 3,12 295,21
Executive Vice Presider 2010 290,000 15,00( — — 305,00(
Engineering and Productic 2011 261,000 — — — 261,00(
Russell B. Kuhimai 2009 133,769 — 14,68¢ 1,60¢€ 150,06
Vice President, Sale 2010 139,992 5,00(C — — 144,99:
2011 125,377 — — — 125,37
@ The following amounts included in thal&@y column for 2010 represent nonrecurring paymemade to offset salary reductions:

Thomas J. Shaw, $41,682; for Douglas W. Cowan,0E®8,for Steven R. Wisner, $29,000; for Michele IMrios, $35,000; and for Russell

Kuhlman, $10,098.

(2) Except for the option granted to Mra&h all options issued during or after 2008 wel@ngd under the 2008 Stock Option Plan.

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimated len date of the grant using the Bla8kholes pricing model with the followi
weighted average assumptions used for grants i8:28Qpected volatility of 67.53%, risk free intstreate of 3.35%, and an expected lif

8.61 to 8.69 years. Other than the options issuddr. Shaw, the options were issued under the 2568k Option Plan.

No options were granted in 2010 or 2011.

The expected life and forfeiture rate assumptioesbased on the vesting period for each optiontgrad expected exercise behav

The assumptions for expected volatility and dividigield are based on recent historical experierRigk-free interest rates are set using grant
date U.S. Treasury yield curves for the same psrasdthe expected term.

3) This amount was compensation pursu@otit matching contributions to the 401(k) plan.
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Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

Please se€ompensation Pursuant to Employment Agreemenabove and POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION (
CHANGE IN CONTROL below for terms of our only emphoent agreement in effect.

For each Named Executive Officer, salary represed@% of total compensation for 2011. Participatio the 2011 Exchange Of
which was available on the same terms to all PrefieShareholders does not constitute compensafibe. 2011 Exchange Offer was ni
repricing or material modification of an equity-bdsaward.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following Outstanding Equity Awards at FiscadafEnd Table sets forth information regarding unexsadioptions held by t
principal executive officer, the principal financaficer, and the three highest paid additiona@&xive officers as of December 31, 2011.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2011 Fiscal Year Enc
Option Awards

Number of

Securities

Underlying Option

Unexercised Exercise Option
Options Price Expiration

Name Exercisable (%) Date

Thomas J. Sha 3,000,00! 0.81 7-15-19
President, CE(

(principal executive officer

Michele M. Larios 97,05( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President 152,95( 0.81 7-15-19
General Counse¢

Douglas W. Cowal 102,00( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, CF( 98,00( 0.81 7-15-19
(principal financial officer, principal accounting

officer)

Steven R. Wisne 100,70( 1.3C 11-18-18
Executive Vice Presider 23,50( 0.81 7-15-19
Engineering and Productic

Russell B. Kuhlmai 63,45( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, Sale 25,00( 0.81 7-15-19

PENSION BENEFITS

We do not have a pension plan other than the 4@igk) which is available to all employees the fogthe month after 90 days
service.

401(k) Plan
We implemented an employee savings and retiremiamt ¢the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that is intendedlie a taxgualified pla
covering substantially all employees. Under thiengeof the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect tordmute up to 88% of their compensation

the statutory prescribed limit, if less. We mayoar
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discretion, match employee contributions. We madéching contributions of $76,643 in 2009. Of #thesatching contributions, $16,930 \
to executive officers. We suspended matching dmutions beginning August 1, 2009 until furtherinet

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CRTROL
The following table identifies the types and amauait payments that shall be made to Mr. Thomas SbawCEO, in the event o
termination of his employment or a change in cdrper his Employment Agreement. Such payments sleamade by us and shall be one-

time, lump sum payments except as indicated below.

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN C ONTROL
ASSUMING OCCURRENCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011®

Salary  Amounts

Through Owed Payment
Trigger Under Undiscounted Salary Equal to
Event Benefit Reimbursement For a Period of 24 90 Days’  Value of
Payment Triggering Event Date Plans® of Expenses Months Salary Payments®
Death X X X — — —
Disability X X X 772,344 — 772,344
Termination With Caus X — X — — —
Termination Without Caus X X X 772,344 — 772,344
Resignation (Other Than After a Change
in Control) X X X — 96,543 772,344
Resignation (After a Change in Contr X X X 772,344 — 772,344
(1) The above payments would be paid under Mr. Shagreement at certain times. Any payments ariagg result of disability

resignation would be paid not sooner than six m®rghd one day from the termination date but narl#han seven months from

termination date. Any payments arising as a resfulieath would be paid no later than the@ay following the death. Payments arising
result of termination with cause or terminationheitit cause would be paid not later than thé& 3fay following the date of termination exc
that any amount due in excess of an amount equhkttesser of two times annual compensation ortimes the limit on compensation un
section 401(17) of the Internal Revenue Code o61898h amount in excess shall be paid no earlger #ix months and one day after the
of termination but in no event later than seven therafter the date of termination. Under Mr. Sreagreement, Mr. Shaw has agreed
one-year norcompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employegsohe year, and not make known our customers avuxts or to call on
solicit our accounts or customers in the eveneahtnation of his employment for one year unlegstérmination is without cause or purst
to a change of control. However, it is not cldaatithe above payments are conditioned on the npeafoce of these contractual obligations.

2 Mr. Shaw participates in our benefit plans whichndt discriminate in scope, terms, or operatiofairor of executive officers. Su
plans are generally available to all salaried eygds. Accordingly, the value of such paymentsoincluded in the “Value of Payments”
column.

3 This value does not include payments under ourfligaians for reasons set forth in footnote 2 aboireaddition, this value assun
that the triggering event occurred on DecembeB11. Authorized payments under the EmploymeneAgrent are also capped to one d
less than the amount that would cause Mr. Shawve tid recipient of a parachute payment under Se280G(b) of the Internal Revenue Cc
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table identifies the types and amesurftcompensation earned by our current and fobmectors (with the exception
those that are named Executive Officers as destiib®otnote 1 to the table) in the last FiscahXe

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2011

Fees Earnec

or Paid in All Other
Cash Compensation Total
Name® $ $) $)
Marco Laterze $ 3,000 $ — 3 3,00
Amy Mack $ 2,500 $ — 3 2,50C
Marwan Sake $ 2,000 $ — 3 2,00(¢
Clarence Zierhu $ 3,000 % — 3 3,00(¢
@ Thomas J. Shaw, Douglas W. Cowan, and Steven WaeeNamed Executive Officers who are also Dirextdrheir compensati

is reflected in the Summary Compensation and d#iges presented earlier.
Narrative Explanation of Director Compensation Tabk for 2011

In 2011 we paid each namployee Director a fee of $500 per meeting anchivarsed travel expenses. We have granted tc
Director stock options for Common Stock. We do pay any additional amounts for committee partitgraor special assignment.

Generally, employee Directors are compensated omtawill basis as discussed in the COMPENSATION DISCUZ®$ AND
ANALYSIS. However, one employee, Mr. Thomas J. 8haur President and CEO, is compensated pursoaa mployment agreeme
Please see “Compensation Pursuant to Employmermtefggnt”, set forth above for an in depth summarhetterms of such agreement.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Bipgtion

The Compensation and Benefits Committee is cuyerttinposed of Clarence Zierhut, Marco Laterza, Amy Mack. Each of the:
members of this committee is an independent Boahiper and none have ever been employees of the @ymp

There are no interlocking Directors or executivéicefs between us and any other company. Accolgingpne of our executi
officers or Directors served as a Director or eteeuofficer for another entity whose executiveicéfs or Directors served on our Boart
Directors.

COMPENSATION POLICIES AND PRACTICES AS THEY RELATEO RISK MANAGEMENT

We do not believe that risteking incentives are created by our compensatidicips. We do not have business units. We beliba
our compensation expense is a reasonable perceotagwenues overall. We have not set specifidoperance criteria for the award
bonuses. Salaries and bonuses, if any, are awéaes on skill, experience, and our overall regsnuNoneash awards to employees
made periodically in the form of stock options, ethiwe believe align the employeésterests with those of stockholders. We review
compensation policies and practices as they rédatisk management objectives if compensation artsoare materially amended or if our |
profile changes. No changes to our compensatitici@®and practices have been implemented asuét ifhanges to our risk profile.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth information relatitggour equity compensation plans as of Decembge?®11:
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities

remaining available
for future issuance

Number of securities to Weighted average under equity
be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column(a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved
security holder: 5,511,090 $ 0.92 271,86°
Equity compensation plans not appro!
by security holders 225,000 $ 6.9C —
Total 5,736,09. 271,86°
* We authorized the issuance of an individual opptan for the purchase of 200,000 shares of ComntookSo Jimmie Shiu, M.C

for his past services in introducing us to purche®é various series of Preferred Stock as wefoasntroducing us to Mr. Jack Jackson, \
controlled Katie Petroleum. The option is exerisat $6.90 per share and will terminate on Sep&r80, 2012.

We authorized the issuance of an individual oppitan for the purchase of 25,000 shares of Commook3b Mr. Harry Watson fi
his past services in assisting us in protecting iatellectual property. The option is exercisabte$6.90 per share and will terminate
September 30, 2012.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee author{zed the shareholders approved) a grant of an rogtio the purchase

3,000,000 shares of Common Stock to our CEO, Tham&baw. The option is exercisable at a prickOdB1 per share, the market price or
date of grant. The option will terminate in 2019.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth certain informatigegarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 1, 2012, for et
person known by us to own beneficially 5% or moir¢he voting capital stock. Except pursuant tolapple community property laws, et
shareholder identified in the table possessesvaieg and investment power with respect to hikershares, except as noted below.
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Amount and
Nature of
Name and Address o Beneficial Percent of

Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class ™
Common Stocl

Thomas J. Sha® 14,615,64 51.€%

511 Lobo Lane

P.O.Box 9

Little EIm, TX 7506¢-0009

Suzanne M. Augus® 3,800,001 15.(%

5793 Lois Lane

Plano, TX 7502

Lillian E. Salernd® 1,831,001 7.3%

432 Edwards

Lewisville, TX 75067

Lloyd I. Miller, 11l ® 1,513,13! 6.C%

4550 Gordon Drive

Naples, FL 3410

Katie Petroleum, Inc 1,402,98I 5.5%
(1) The Percent of Class is calculated for the ComntonkSclass by dividing each beneficial owrseBmount of Beneficial Ownersh

as shown in the table above, by the sum of thd tmitstanding Common Stock (25,318,700 shares) fias beneficial ownes stocl
equivalents (options), if any.

(2) 3,000,000 of the shares identified as Common S&wekshares acquirable through the exercise ofck stption. 2,800,000 of tI
shares are owned by Ms. Suzanne August (see feo8)dbut are controlled by Mr. Shaw pursuant toaing Agreement. These shares
permanently controlled by Mr. Shaw until such time they are sold by Ms. August. These sharesnatedied in the share amounts
percentages for both Mr. Shaw and Ms. August inatheve table. Mr. Shaw has investment power oy@0,000 shares of Common Stoc
Trustee pursuant to trust agreements for the beakefamily members. Ms. August has voting contwekr such 1,000,000 shares as Sp
Trustee (see footnote 3). These shares are irtindbe share amounts and percentages for botlshMw and Ms. August in the above table.

(3) Ms. Augusts 2,800,000 shares are controlled by Mr. Thom&hdw pursuant to a Voting Agreement. These stereicluded i
the share amounts and percentages for both Mr. @haws. August in the above table. Ms. Augustyasig control over 1,000,000 sha
of Common Stock as Special Trustee pursuant to agreements for the benefit of family members.. $fraw has investment power over ¢
1,000,000 shares as Trustee. These shares andéddin the share amounts and percentages forNbot8haw and Ms. August in the abi
table.

4 25,000 shares identified as Common Stock are shdrieh are obtainable by the exercise of a stodloop

(5) The number of shares held by this person was addimom a Schedule 13G/A filed on February 14, 20B2rsuant to the Sched
13G/A, Lloyd I. Miller, 11l has sole voting and dissitive power for all reported shares.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth certain informatigegarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 1, 2012, for et
Named Executive Officer specified by Item 402 ofjRlation ¢-K (i.e., our CEO, CFO,
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and three other highest paid officers) and eackedbir of the Company. Except pursuant to appleatdmmunity property laws or
otherwise discussed below, each shareholder igkhtii the table possesses sole voting and investpmver with respect to his or her shares.

Amount and
Nature of Percent
Name of Beneficial of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class®
Common Stocl
As a Groug Named Executive Officers and Directt 15,461,87 54.%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha® 14,615,64 51.6%
Clarence Zierhu® 62,50( <1%
Douglas W. Cowa® 200,00( <1%
Steven R. Wisne® 129,45( <1%
Russell B. Kuhlmai® 89,45( <1%
Michele M. Larios® 261,00( 1.C%
Marco Laterz&® 60,00( <1%
Amy Mack ® 43,82¢ <1%
(1) The Percent of Class is calculated for the indiglduholding Common Stock by dividing each benefiganer's Amount o

Beneficial Ownership, as shown in the table abbyethe sum of the total outstanding Common Sto&3P8,700 shares) plus that benef
owner's stock equivalents (options), if any. Therdent of Class is calculated for the “As a Grougi by totaling all of the Percent
Class percentages appearing in the chart.

(2 3,000,000 of the shares identified as Common Sgwekshares acquirable through the exercise of ck tption. 2,800,000 of tl
shares are owned by Ms. Suzanne August but areotledt by Mr. Shaw pursuant to a Voting Agreemeiihese shares are permane
controlled by Mr. Shaw until such time as they so&l by Ms. August. These shares are includedlicuéating Mr. Shaws percentages in t
above table. Mr. Shaw has investment power oved010D0 shares of Common Stock as Trustee pursodnidt agreements for the benefi
family members. These shares are included in log Mr. Shaw’s percentages in the above table.

3 These shares are acquirable by the exercise & sfiions.

4) These shares are acquirable by the exercise & sfimns.

(5) 124,200 of these shares are acquirable by theisgaststock options.

(6) 88,450 of these shares identified as Common Staekleares acquirable by the exercise of stock agtio

@) 250,000 of these shares identified as Common Sicelshares acquirable by the exercise of stoclmgti 1,000 of these shares

owned by Ms. Larios’ children.

(8) 50,000 of these shares identified as Common Stackleares acquirable by the exercise of stock ogtio

9) These shares identified as Common Stock are shagesrable by the exercise of stock options.

There are no arrangements, the operation of whalddwesult in a change in control of the Compantier than:
1. Ms. August’s shares shall cease to be controjellir. Shaw under their Voting Agreement upontisaie to a third party; and
2. Mr. Shaw was granted an option for the purclds® 000,000 shares of Common Stock. Mr. Shawblie & control 51.6% of tt
currently outstanding shares of the Common Stoak \would control 45.4% of the Common Stock assumntimg exercise of ¢

outstanding options and conversion of all outstagdireferred shares and convertible loans.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins, and Director Independence

Related Party Transactions

We believe that all of the transactions set fotloty were made on terms no less favorable to us ¢bald have been obtained fr
unaffiliated third parties. In accordance with dwdit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee hagiewed and approved all related p
transactions. In particular, the Audit Committee reviews all poged transactions where the amount involved meetzaeeds $120,000.

In 1995, Thomas J. Shaw, President, Chief Execuliffecer, and shareholder holding more than 5%haf dutstanding Comm
Stock, was paid a licensing fee of $500,000 (arpedtiover 17 years) by us for the exclusive worl@énlidensing rights to manufacture, mar
sell, and distribute retractable medical safetydpots. A royalty of 5% of gross sales of all lised products sold to customers over the li
the Technology Licensing Agreement is paid. O$ ttayalty, Ms. Suzanne August, the former spouddrfShaw, is entitled to $100,000
quarter. Mr. Shaw receives the remainder of thigalty. A royalty of $3,370,588 and $2,552,09&8swpaid to Thomas J. Shaw in 2011
2010, respectively. Ms. August received $400,00@2011 and 2010. Royalties of $100,000 were paiths. August from January 1, 2(
through March 1, 2012.

Thomas J. Shaw exchanged his Preferred Stock sfrar€mmon Stock and cash in the fourth quarte2@ff1 pursuant to the 2C
Exchange Offer on the same terms as were offeradll tBreferred Stockholders. Mr. Shaw received88,shares of Common Stock .
$95,843 in exchange for 5,000 shares of SeriesrBfeRred Stock and 81,607 shares of Series V RegfeBtock, and he waived a tota
$58,110 in unpaid dividends in arrears. Our Comi8tock had a closing stock price of $1.39 at Ndwend, 2011, the expiration date of
2011 Exchange Offer.

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has the responsibility fetablishing corporate policies and for our ovepatformance, although it is r
involved in day-today operations. Currently, half (three of six}tleé Directors serving on our Board of Directors iadependent Directors
defined in Section 121(A) of the listing standaofishe NYSE Amex. Our current independent Direstare Clarence Zierhut, Marco Late
and Amy Mack. Each of our committees is constdwgelely by independent Directors.

The Board of Directors, in reviewing the indeperztenf its members, further considered the fact Wepaid Ms. Macls compan
$20,350 in 2010 for conducting clinical trials. eTtBoard of Directors determined that her indepenélemas not compromised by s
transactions.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of anurual financial statements
2011 and 2010 and the reviews of the financiakestants included in our Forms T-or services normally provided by the accounta
connection with statutory and regulatory filings foose fiscal years were $195,270 and $193,36pgertively.

AUDIT RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of 4k(k) plan for 2011 and 20
were $13,765 and $13,520, respectively.
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TAX FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. feegaration of federal and state income tax retarmbstax consulting costs relatet
notices from taxing authorities for 2011 and 20Eev$65,065 and $65,438, respectively.

PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The engagement of CF & Co., L.L.P. was entered puosuant to the approval policies and procedufethe Audit Committee
Before CF & Co., L.L.P. was engaged to render ses/the engagement was approved by the Audit CdeenifThe engagement is for a
and tax services which were detailed separatehe Audit Committee implemented its approval procedyi.e., they were not delegated to
other party. All of the services provided were-ppproved by the Audit Committee.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(@ (1) Allfinancial statements: See Retractable Techriekdnc. Index to Financial Statements on Pe-2.

(2) Those financial statement schedules required tfildgk by Item 8 of this form, and by paragraph feJow. Schedule IBchedule ¢
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ehddecember 31, 2011, 2010, and 2(

Balance at
beginning Balance at
of period Additions Deductions end of period
Provision for Inventorie
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 205,60( $ — 3 — 3 205,60(
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 205,60( $ — 3 — 3 205,60(
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 205,600 $ 52,83t $ — 8 258,43!
Provision for Accounts Receivabl
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 499,96t $ 182,00( $ — 8 681,96t
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 681,96t $ 98,93 $ — $ 780,90(
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 780,90 $ 1,298,04. $ — 8 2,078,94.
Deferred Tax Valuatio
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 6,033,38 $ 613,81¢ $ — 8 6,647,20.
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 6,647,20. $ — 8 1,204,52; $ 5,442,68:
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 5,442,68. $ — 3 559,26t $ 4,883,411
Provision for Rebate (A) (B)
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 3,867,841 $ 16,554,16 $  14,365,03 $ 6,056,97.
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 6,056,997 $ 16,862,73 $ 11,817,388 $  11,102,32
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 11,102,32 $ 1922930 $ 1417284 $  16,158,79
(A) Represents estimated rebates deducted from gnossues

(B) Represents rebates credited to the distrik
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3) Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incomated herein by reference to exhibits previousddfwith the SEC.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit Description of Document

lgl(oi). Restated Certificate of Formation with CertificatdDesignation, Preferences, Rights and Limitatioh Class B Preferred Stc
(all Series) *

3(ii) Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of RT

4 Restated Certificate of Formation with CertificatdDesignation, Preferences, Rights and Limitegioh Class B Preferred Stc
(all Series) *

10.1 Sample United States Distribution Agreement

10.2 Sample Foreign Distribution Agreement*

10.3 Employment Agreement between RTI and Thomas J. Sheted as of January 1, 2008 (This is a managenwnpensatic
contract.) ****

10.4 Technology License Agreement between Thomas J. @haviRTI dated the Z¢ day of June 1995**

10.5 First Amendment to Technology License Agreemenivbeh Thomas J. Shaw and RTI dated the 3rd daylyf2008 t

10.6 Loan Agreement among RTI, Katie Petroleum and Thodn&haw as of the ' day of September, 2002 and Promissory No

10.7 RTI's 1999 Stock Option Plan**

10.8 First Amendment to 1999 Stock Option Plan’

10.9 Retractable Technologies, Inc. 2008 Stock Opti@n®t 11

10.10 Thomas J. Shaw Nonqualified Stock Option Agreentesued Outside of Any Ple

10.11 Voting Agreement Between Thomas J. Shaw and SuzAngest dated November 8, 20-°

14 Retractable Technologies, Inc. Code of BusinessdGotnand Ethiciece

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing ccce

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officecoo

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officeoooe

32 Section 1350 Certificatioreceo
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Exhibit Description of Document
No.
101 The following materials from this report, formattedXBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Languagg)Balance Sheets as

December 31, 2011 and 2010, (ii) the Statemen®p&rations for the years ended December 31, 20110, 2and 2009, (iii) tr
Statements of Changes in Stockholdé&mlity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2002009, (iv) the Statements of C
Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 282009, and (v) Notes to Financial Statemeccce

* Incorporated herein by reference to s Form 1-Q filed on November 15, 201

*x Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form K filed on May 13, 201(

ok Incorporated herein by reference to ’'s Registration Statement on Forn-SB filed on June 23, 20(
rkkk Incorporated herein by reference to s Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 20(

T Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-K filed on March 31, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form &K filed on October 10, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-KSB filed on March 31, 200

Tttt  Incorporated herein by reference to 's definitive Schedule 14A filed on August 19, 2(

° Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Form 1-K filed on March 31, 201

00 Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Schedule TO filed on October 17, 2(
Incorporated herein by reference to ’'s Form &K filed on February 19, 201
Filed herewitt

(c) Excluded Financial Statement Schedules: N
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repot
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC
(Registrant

By: /sl Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

Date: March 30, 201:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpuhe following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

s/ Steven R. Wisne

Steven R. Wisne

Executive Vice President, Engineering
Production and Directc

March 30, 201:

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa

Douglas W. Cowal

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Principal
Accounting Officer, Treasurer, and Direc

March 30, 201:

/sl Clarence Zierht
Clarence Zierhu
Director

March 30, 201:

/s Amy Mack
Amy Mack
Director

March 30, 201:

/s/ Marco Laterzi
Marco Laterze
Director

March 30, 201:
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Exhibit 2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRlegistration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-15587d 333-1300419f Retractabl
Technologies, Inc. of our report dated March 30 2€elating to our audit of the financial statenseand financial statement schedule, w
appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Retthle Technologies, Inc. for the year ended Dece®@bg2011.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 30, 201:




Exhibit 31.:
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Thomas J. Shaw, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tegqas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsibide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi:
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymgiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presaémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaodmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal contnér financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 201:

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Douglas W. Cowan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tegqas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsibide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi:
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidatedbsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymgiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presaémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaodmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal contnér financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 201:

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICEFR
AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICEF




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Solely in connection with the filing of the Annuakport of Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Camyd) on Form 1K for the period ende
December 31, 2011, as filed with the United St&esurities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéle “Report”),the undersigne
Thomas J. Shaw, Chief Executive Officer, and Dosigll. Cowan, Chief Financial Officer, do hereby iégrtpursuant to 18 U.S.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@G&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financ@ldition and results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 30, 201:

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER, AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING OFFICER




